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From the Board
It is satisfying to once again 
present a report detailing our 
positive performance for the 
2014/15 year. 

SCDHB has seen continued 
strengthening of its 
performance with some 
exciting additions and 
developments to our DHB. 
Our performance is measured 
through many indicators 
including community 
and patient satisfaction, 
government health targets, 
service levels , workforce, and 
financial targets. 
Individually these factors are important 
and a challenge to achieve, therefore our 
success across all performance measures, 
whilst operating within our financial 
means, is a proud achievement.  Our 
mission is to enhance the health and 
independence of the people of South 
Canterbury and we proudly strive for 
continuous improvement toward this.

We also continue to collaborate 
nationally and regionally on projects that 
ensure the effective and efficient delivery 
of healthcare, including significant 
representation on South Island Alliance 
groups. This means we take a collective 
responsibility for ensuring sustainable 
services across the South Island. 

A selection of highlights from 2014/15 
included:

  Three of the six health targets were met. 
Further progress was made against the 
more heart and diabetes checks with 
the DHB just falling short of target.

  The DHB met Well Child / Tamariki 
Ora Quality Improvement Framework 
indicator breast feeding targets for 
2014. 
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Murray Cleverley
Chair

Nigel Trainor
Chief Executive

 

  The DHB continues to perform well 
above the national benchmark score of 
70 for its family violence intervention 
programme. 

  An increased in uptake of the DHB’s 
pneumonia immunisation programme.

  Mammography results for both Māori 
and total populations exceeded target.

  In excess of a 100% coverage for B4 
School Checks.

  Target for percentage of children caries 
free at five years of age met. 

  The level of access by adolescents in 
South Canterbury to oral health services 
is the highest in the country. 

  Quality Safety Markers targets met. 

Our Members

We have a stable and committed Board 
with all seven Board members re-elected 
in December 2013 elections for a three 
year term. This year many important 
decisions were considered and made by 
the Board including the decision to exit 
the provision of aged care at Talbot Park. 
This will take some time and will only be 
completed on the premise that equal and 
alternative provision of care can be found. 

Ongoing challenges for the Board 
continue to be our ageing population 
and workforce as well as exciting 
progression in the form of development 
and refurbishments to our facilities whilst 
continuing to live within our means. 

Patient Safety and Experience

Our DHB continuously strives for 
excellence in the healthcare we deliver, 
with an organisation-wide focus on 
quality to enhance patient safety and 
experience. A fantastic example of this is 
the falls prevention programme carried 
out in AT&R which has gone from some 
of the worst fall rates in the country to 
Timaru Hospital’s AT&R ward seeing no 

falls with serious harm for over two years. 
We also released our second annual 
Quality Account and further strengthened 
our reporting and monitoring systems 
across the organisation providing greater 
public transparency and accountability. 

Primary Care

Primary Care continues to see substantive 
growth in relationship building and 
collaboration with general practice. 
Collaborative efforts have included 
the further development of Aoraki 
HealthPathways, new services such 
as diabetes foot assessments and 
the introduction of new Information 
Technology to support quality patient 
care. The Board has supported a 
community engagement initiative to 
ensure that after-hours care services 
are sustainable. This work has included 
public consultation, engagement with 
communities and subsequent community 
education. 

Thank you

The more than 57,000 people who call 
South Canterbury home and all the team 
should be very proud of the performance 
our DHB has once again delivered. 

On behalf of the Board we would like to 
acknowledge the effort put in by staff, 
volunteers, and contracted providers 
both within the hospital and the wider 
South Canterbury health system. Your 
contribution is critical to the ongoing 
success and stability of health and 
disability services within the South 
Canterbury community.  We look forward 
to the year ahead with further progress 
of our facility refurbishments and 
developments as we continue to be a 
well performing and fiscally responsible 
little DHB.  For and on behalf of the South 
Canterbury District Health Board.
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South Canterbury District 
Health Board (SCDHB)

The Board’s responsibilities include:

  Communicating with the Minister of Health and other 
stakeholders to ensure their views are reflected in SCDHB’s 
planning.

  Defining specific objectives and delegating responsibility for 
their achievement to the Chief Executive.

  Monitoring organisational performance toward achieving 
stated objectives.

  Reporting to stakeholders on plans and progress towards 
achieving set objectives.

  Maintaining effective systems of internal control.

The Board maintains an interest register and ensures members 
are aware of their obligations to declare potential conflicts of 
interest. 

Board meetings are held monthly at the Timaru Hospital 
Education Centre in Timaru. Members of the public are 
encouraged to attend.

BOARD MEMBERS
Murray Cleverley, chair (elected)

Ron Luxton, deputy chair (elected)

Paul Annear (elected)

Peter Binns (elected)

Rene Crawford (elected)

Terry Kennedy (elected)

Ngaire Whytock (elected)

Edie Moke (appointed)

Raeleen de Joux (appointed)

Murray Roberts (appointed)

Michael Boorer (appointed)

Murray Cleverley
Chair

The SCDHB is governed by an 11 member board, seven members are publicly elected and four are 
appointed by the Minister of Health. The Board concentrates on setting policy, approving strategy 
and monitoring progress towards meeting objectives. Management implements the Board’s policy 
and strategies.

Rene Crawford

Terry KennedyEdie Moke

Raeleen de Joux

Ngaire Whytock Paul Annear

Peter Binns

Murray Roberts

Michael Boorer Ron Luxton
Deputy Chair 
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Board Committees

Current Board Committees

Community & Public Health 
Advisory Committee (CPHAC) 
CPHAC advises the Board on the 
health needs and issues facing South 
Canterbury residents, and on the 
priorities for the use of health funding. 
It also advises the Board on how 
services funded and/or provided by 
SCDHB, and SCDHB’s policies, will 
impact our population. Committee 
meetings, which are open to the public, 
are usually held every second month on 
the same day as the Board meeting.

Members

Ron Luxton (chair, board member)

Rene Crawford (board member)

Paul Annear (board member)

Peter Binns (board member)

Ngaire Whytock (board member)

Jan Gilbert 

David Jack

Kevin Foley  

  

Disability Support Advisory 
Committee (DSAC) 
DSAC advises on the disability 
support service (DSS) needs of 
South Cantabrians and on the 
priorities for use of DSS funding. DSS 
includes assessment, treatment and 
rehabilitation, community-based 
services aimed at helping the disabled 
retain independence, and residential 
care. The committee makes sure that 
the services provided or funded, 
and the policies adopted, promote 
the inclusion and participation of 
people with disabilities in our society, 
and maximise their independence. 
Committee meetings, which are open 
to the public, are usually held every 
quarter.

Members

Ngaire Whytock (chair, board member)

Terry Kennedy (board member)

Raeleen de Joux (board member)

Peter Binns (board member)

Rene Crawford (board member)

Tony Gilchrist

Diane Nutsford

Margaret Wiberg

Hospital Advisory Committee 
(HAC) 
HAC monitors the financial and 
operational performance of Timaru 
Hospital and assesses strategic issues 
related to the provision of hospital 
services. Committee meetings, which 
are open to the public, are held every 
second month on the same day as the 
Board meeting.

Members

Paul Annear (chair, board member)

Murray Roberts (board member)

Terry Kennedy (board member)

Ron Luxton (board member)

Michael Boorer (board member)

Christine Miller

David Sibley

Wendy Odey

Audit and Assurance 
Committee (AAC) 
AAC is a non-statutory committee 
that ensures the Board appropriately 
discharges its responsibilities relative 
to financial reporting, regulatory 
compliance and risk management.

Members

Murray Roberts (chair, board member)

Murray Cleverley (board member)

Edie Moke (board member)

Ron Luxton (board member)

Michael Boorer (board member)

John Christie (Independent member)

CEO Remuneration Committee
This committee reviews and sets the 
remuneration of the Chief Executive 
in accordance with applicable State 
Services Commission guidelines.

Members

Murray Cleverley (chair, board member)

Murray Roberts (board member)

Ron Luxton (board member)

Māori Health Advisory Group 
(MHAC)
The Māori Health Advisory Group 
advises the Board on issues related to 
Māori health.

Members

Raeleen De Joux (chair, board member)

Edie Moke (board member)

Koriana Waller (Te Runanga o 
Arowhenua)

Suzanne Eddington (Te Runanga o 
Waihao)

Suzy Waaka (Te Runanga o Arowhenua)

Amanda Wills (Te Aitarakihi Trust)

Jo McLean (Te Runanga o Waihao)

Karl Te Raki (Te Aitarakihi Trust)
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Disclosure of Board Members’ 
Interests
Paul Annear
Elected member; Physiotherapist in 
Private Practice (Timaru & Ashburton)

Shareholder and Director – FAIM 
Holdings – Family Company

Shareholder and Director – Timaru 
Holdings

Director, McLeod Building, Invercargill

Shareholder/Director Westhills Forestry 
Ltd

Daughter employed by  Southlink 
Health as a NASC Assessor

Peter Binns
Elected member; MB, BChir, FRCS

Retired medical practitioner

Committee member: Timaru Greypower

Trustee, Line Trust SC

Murray Cleverley 
Chair, South Canterbury DHB

Elected Member, South Canterbury DHB 

Chair, Canterbury DHB

Director, Trust Aoraki 

Director, Health NZ Innovation Hub

Managing Director of Business Class Ltd 

Chairman, Opihi Vineyard Ltd 

Director, Canterbury Economic 
Development Co. Ltd 

Director, Warbirds over Wanaka 

Director, Shoe Shield Ltd 

Director, Animal Care Solutions 

Director, Sky Solar Holdings Ltd 

Partner, Cleverley Holdings Partnership 

Director, SI Neurosurgical Services 
Board 

Member, HBL Transition Committee

Chair, Holloway Builders Ltd

Terry Kennedy
Elected member

Stroke Club, Member

Ron Luxton
Ronal (Ron) Luxton.

Board Deputy Chair, Elected Member

Chair, Aoraki MRI Charitable Trust

Trustee, Aoraki Foundation

Justice of the Peace

Trustee, Green-gables Trust.

Ngaire Whytock 
Elected member 

Registered Nurse 

Member of Alzheimers SC Inc.

Residents Advocate for Presbyterian 
Support South Canterbury

Rene Crawford
Employed by SCDHB as an Associate 
Director of Allied Health 

Employed by University of Otago 
School of Physiotherapy as a 
Professional Practice Fellow – University 
of Otago School of Physiotherapy has a 
contract with SCDHB.

Brother employed by SCDHB as a 
Consultant Orthopaedic Surgeon

Physiotherapy New Zealand South 
Canterbury and Canterbury Branch 
Member

Board of Trustee – Cannington Primary 
School

Trustee – Temford Family Trust

Member Tennis South Canterbury Board

Murray Roberts
Appointed Member SCDHB

Director, Trust Aoraki Ltd

Principal Officer, Trust Aoraki Ltd

Consultant/Business Advisor to SGS 
New Zealand Ltd

Board Chair, Harlequins RFC Inc

Public Shareholder; Green Cross Health 
(rebranded) Trustee – Morrison Family 
Trust

Trustee – Morrison Family Trust

Trustee – Meyer Family Trust

Trustee – Roberts Family Trust

Sister In Law employed at Christchurch 
Public Hospital as Service Manager:  
Emergency Department, Intensive 
Care, Hagley Outpatients, Hyperbaric 
Medicine.

Edie Moke
CDHB Board member

Raeleen de Joux
National Cervical Screening Programme 
– casual contracted smear taker

Community Trust Mid/South Canterbury 
– Trustees

Timaru Māori Women’s Welfare League 
– Secretary

Whakawhetu; Auckland University  – 
Expert Advisory Group

NZ Breast Feeding Authority – Baby 
Friendly Assessor

Aoraki Polytechnic – Programme 
Administrator Childbirth Education 
Programme

Daughter employed by SCDHB

Michael Boorer
Member of the Order of St John

Sister employed by SCDHB as a Hospital 
Aide at Talbot Park

Director, Timaru Electricity Ltd

Director, SmartCo Ltd

Director, On Metering Ltd
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The South Island Alliance 
enables the regions five DHBs 
to work collaboratively to 
develop more innovative 
and efficient health services 
than could be achieved 
independently.

SOUTH ISLAND ALLIANCE 
HIGHLIGHTS
The South Island Alliance continues to 
be proud of the achievements being 
made through the commitment of the 
people across the South Island health 
system.

1.  Improved environments to support 
health and wellbeing

•  Consistent Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Indicators has been completed

•  Sustainable health care initiatives are 
shared to support more efficient and 

cost-effective health care delivery, 
including energy initiatives, lighting, 
waste reduction and a decrease in 
carbon emissions

•  Increasing the number of software and 
systems programmes that align across 
the South Island DHBs: South Island 
Patient Information Care System (SI 
PICS), Health Connect South (HCS) and 
ProVation

The Year in Review

Working Together 

Best for people, 
best for system 

Our vision is a sustainable South Island health and disability system – best for people, best for 
system. The Alliance is focused on keeping people well and providing equitable and timely access 
to safe, effective, high-quality services, as close to people’s homes as possible
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The Year in Review

2.  People have increased access to 
planned care

•  The South Island Bariatric Surgery 
Service provides; a single wait list, 
triage, HealthPathway and multi-
disciplinary meeting

•  25 consistent urology HealthPathways 
have been developed 

•  eReferrals, an electronic system to 
replace paper-based referrals, have 
been implemented in the DHBs with 
Health Connect South 

3. People wait for less time

•  South Island DHBs consistently 
achieved 80-90% of patients being 
seen within three days following an 
acute coronary event 

•  Initiated discussions between 
southern DHBs and the Ministry to 
improve performance against ACS 
indicators

•  Colorectal Cancer Treatment Fast Track 
group has developed a tool to reduce 
wait times and  enhance efficiency

4.  People have prevented/delayed 
burden of long term conditions

•  Established a group to focus on child 
and adolescent diabetes care, with 
particular regard for Type 1 

•  Work with providers to ensure people 
receive more rapid emergency 
response and acute care management 
after a stroke

•  Establishment of a South Island 
Stroke Nurse Networking to ensure 
best practice with collective problem 
solving and sharing ideas

•  Liaison services have been redesigned 
for people requiring access to mental 
health care after the birth of a child

•  Canterbury and Southern DHB have 
formed a delivery hub for South Island 
youth accessing forensic services 

•  Primary Care Dementia Education 
Coordinators support improved 
diagnosis and quality of life for South 
Island dementia patients

5.  People have fewer and shorter 
episodes in care facilities

•  The South Island Eating Disorder 
Service has begun reviewing all 
outpatients after session four if they 
are not progressing

6. No wasted resource

•  Piloting Gerontology Acceleration 
Programme (GAP) in Canterbury to 
support registered nurses to be future 
clinical leaders

•  39 Allied Health Assistants (AHA) have 
completed Level 3 National Certificate 
for Health Assistants, a further 20 still 
completing it 

•  Planning for the health workforce in 
five to ten years was facilitated with a 
workshop in October

•  Implementing Safety 1st, our regional 
incident management system, has 
delivered cost savings to DHBs

•  Regional DHB Sustainability 
Champions share sustainable 
healthcare initiatives for more efficient 
and cost-effective health care 

•  Inter-hospital patient transfer is more 
efficient and consistent following a 
South Island agreement between 
DHBs and St John

•  South Island DHBs have saved $4.32 
million on facilities and maintenance 
by working collaboratively through 
the Alliance 

7.  People are protected from harm or 
needless death

•  Prosafe is available in all South Island 
DHBs assisting in management and 
assessment of child protection and 
family violence

•  Safety 1st is live in South Canterbury, 
Nelson Marlborough, Southern and 
West Coast DHBs

•  Online nursing procedures went 
online for South Island DHBs in May 

•  25 South Island Allied Health 
professionals completed Calderdale 
Framework training; 10 went on to 
commence facilitation training

•  A South Island workshop was held 
for DHBs to share progress toward 
implementing new Medical Council 
pre-vocational curriculum

•  FTE numbers of post graduate medical 
trainees years 1 and 2 increased across 
the South Island

•  Roll out of MedChart continued with 
implementation for Southern DHB , 
Timaru Hospital and 355 Canterbury 
DHB beds 

8. People die with dignity

•  A Palliative Care Workstream has been 
established to take a whole sector 
approach to palliative and end of life 
care

•  Advance Care Plans are being actively 
promoted across the South Island 
to discuss and document peoples’ 
medical care wishes 
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PRIMARy CARE SyMPOSIUM 

The Chair of CPHAC Ron Luxton opened 
the fourth Primary Care Symposium 
in May this year.  This symposium 
was attended by over 90 health 
professionals working within primary 
care with a range of topics presented 
including oncology, chronic kidney 
disease, palliative care and weight 
management in primary care.  The 
day concluded with dinner and guest 
speaker Sir Ray Avery.  The feedback 
was positive with 93% rating the day as 
very good or excellent.

PRIMARy CARE SUPPORT 

During this year the primary care 
support functions have been brought 
back in house, with the introduction 
of a Primary Care Support Coordinator 
role.  This role’s primary function in 
addition to payments is to ensure the 
population of South Canterbury is 
enrolled with a primary care practice.  
This management of persons wishing 
to enrol has meant that there is now an 
average wait time for a person to get a 
new GP of two days.

This transition has also enabled more 
extensive reporting and analysis 
of primary care activity, which has 
informed planning and decision 
making.  Through this increased 
monitoring practices are also receiving 
more detailed information to support 
their business planning.

Primary and Community 

The Year in Review

GP LOCUMS

This service has continued to be 
successful and well-supported by the 
primary care practices.  As a result of 
this programme we now see some of 
the GPs choosing South Canterbury 
as their new home and becoming 
employed within other practices once 
their contract has ended with the DHB.  

Dr Anne-Thea McGill talking on weight management in primary care

Dr David Gibbs, Oncologist at 
Canterbury DHB
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THE FIRST IN NEW ZEALAND 
In October 2014 SCDHB orderlies 
Donna Russell-Reihana and Andrew 
McGillen not only completed the 
National Certificate in Health, 
Disability, and Aged Support 
(Orderlies) (Level 3) they also 
progressed to being Careerforce 
registered assessors of the 
programme – the first in New Zealand 
to complete this.

The qualification, which Donna and 
Andrew elected to participate in, 
takes about 10 months to complete 
and is made up of theoretical and 
practical elements. “We didn’t 
have to do it, but really appreciate 
the opportunity to complete the 
certificate. The theory work was in 
our own time but practical stuff was 
part of our job and could be signed 
off here,” says Donna. 

The certificate covers many aspects of 
the orderlies’ role including study of 
the code of rights, handling patients, 
using hoists, cultural understanding 
and safety and infection control. 
“SCDHB orderlies are well rounded 
as they also cover security and the 
mortuary, not all orderlies around 
the country work in those areas,” says 
Service Manager Nathan Taylor. 

The qualification was developed in 
response to industry requests. It is 
designed to ensure that orderlies 
have the appropriate skills for the role 
and can provide quality support to 
those they work with. People working 
as orderlies in health care facilities 
can get recognition for, or learn, the 
skills required by orderlies to assist 

Attracting and Retaining Staff 

The paperwork to prove it. Left to right, Joanna Martino Career Workplace Advisor, 
Andrew McGillen, Orderly, Donna Russel-Reihana, Orderly, and Nathan Taylor, 
Service Support Manager.

The Year in Review

medical staff and managers. This 
includes skills such as transporting 
patients, using medical equipment, 
and transferring supplies to and 
from wards and departments in 
medical facilities. “I suppose it’s all 
about cementing what we know and 
knowing what we are doing is to the 
right standard,” says Andrew.

“Having assessors on your team 
enables you to embed the 
qualification within your organisation 
and have people who can support 
and sign off others who want to 
complete the certificate, instead of 
relying on other DHBs,” says Joanna 
Martino from Careerforce.

Another four orderlies have enrolled 
in the certificate. “Being assessors 
means we can encourage others 
to complete the qualification and 
help them. The work books can look 
daunting but once you get into it 
you realise you do know what you’re 
talking about,” says Donna.

Andrew and Donna feel good to be 
recognised for what they do. “Much 
of the qualification is what we do 
already, it is nice to learn that what 
we are doing is correct, be able to 
brush up on areas we need to learn 
more about and being acknowledged 
for the good standard of work we do.”

“It’s another feather in the cap and it’s 
great to keep learning,” says Andrew.
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REHABILITATION ASSISTANTS 
RECOGNISED 
In 2015 three staff members,  
Kathleen Hollands, Robyn Corry and 
Pam Puller  completed Rehabilitation 
Assistant training. They were amongst 
the first group of trainees to complete 
the Health Assistants strand of the 
new NZ Certificate in Health and 
Wellbeing Level 3 qualification in the 
South Island. 

The knowledge that they have gained 
through completing the workbooks 
and carrying out work based activities 
will enable them to work with a 
number of Allied Health Professionals 
across Secondary and Primary and 
Community Services. SCDHB is in 
the process of implementing the 
Calderdale Framework which will 
enable the Rehabilitation Assistants 
to work at the top end of their scope 
of practice. 

Attracting and Retaining Staff 

Director of Allied Health Rene Templeton 
and Director of Nursing and Midwifery 
Jane Brosnahan.

Left to Right; South Island Workforce 
Development Hub representative 
Catherine Coups, Rehabilitation 
Assistants Kathleen Hollands, Robyn 
Corry, Pam Puller and Director of Allied 
Health Rene Templeton.

The Year in Review

DIRECTOR OF ALLIED HEALTH 
APPOINTED 
In June 2015, Rene Templeton 
was appointed the Director of 
Allied Health. A new role that was 
previously included in the role of the 
Director of Nursing and Midwifery. 

Rene is a Physiotherapist and has 
been the Associate Director of Allied 
Health at SCDHB for two years. This 
role covers Allied Health in both the 
Secondary, Primary and Community 
settings and helps raise the profile 
and clinical leadership of the Allied 
Health group.

SCDHB RECRUITMENT SySTEM 
GOES ELECTRONIC 

In September 2014, SCDHB moved 
to a NZ developed cloud based 
e-recruitment system. 

This system enables people to 
register with the system before 
intending to apply as well as being 
able to: 

 Access the system 24/7

 Set up job alerts

 Create job watch lists

 Search 

  Update their profile and 
information 

 Upload a CV 

 Apply for vacancies listed

 Keep track of application process

 View messages 

This system has provided quality and 
efficiency to our recruitment process 
which was previously paper based. It 
also provides a number of enhanced 
and useful features to applicants and 
our staff alike. 

The site is viewable for staff from our 
intranet and externally via SCDHB’s 
website. 
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GARDENS BLOCK  REFURBISHMENT 

In June 2014/15 staff moved back into 
the newly refurbished Gardens Block at 
Timaru Hospital after it was evacuated 
and closed in July 2012 due to an 
engineer’s assessment.

Staff who have moved back into the 
building include Executive staff, Human 
Resources, Finance, Quality and Risk and 
Strategy Planning and Funding who 
were temporarily located at premises on 
George Street in Timaru’s main centre.

The Timaru Hospital Administration 
Building  has been emptied and from 

that building Secondary Services, IT,  
Medical Secretaries, SMOs and the 
Outpatients Appointment Office have 
also moved into the Gardens Block.

The hospital radio have moved back into 
the Gardens Block on level six and on-
call accommodation has been updated 
on the level seven.

Ongoing work is still underway in the 
north end for Audiology and stairway 
with the refurbishment project of 
the Gardens Block expected to be 
completed by October 2015.

The Year in Review

A Focus on Facilities 

KENSINGTON REFURBISHMENT 

In order to meet current mental health 
service standards, the Kensington Centre  
began to update its facilities at the 
beginning of 2014.

Phase one of the refurbishment has 
been completed with the Infant, 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health 
Service  (ICAMHS) being moved from 
Kowhai House to Kensington due to 
earthquake risk.

Timaru Hospital’s Gardens Block
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The Year in Review

A Focus on Facilities 

Architects, Chow Hill’s impression of the front of Timaru Hospital Upgrade. 

Phase two, the update of the 
administration, offices, and ward work is 
currently 50% complete. The New Secure 
unit refurbishments are Phase 3 and are 
expected to commence before the end 
of 2015. 

There are a number of other changes 
that go along with this work such as fire 
safety systems alterations, upgrades 
for building compliance, plumbing/
drainage, IT and electrical changes as 
needed. 

 The whole project has a budget of 
$830,000. The project is currently 
running under budget.

The refurbishments are scheduled to 
finish March 2016.

FRONT OF HOSPITAL UPGRADE 
CONFIRMED  

SCDHB approved refurbishments to 
Timaru Hospital in June 2015. 

The South Canterbury District Health 
Board has approved to progress the front 
of Timaru Hospital upgrade. This is one 
stage of the stepped approach towards 
the site master plan. 

“We have undertaken intensive work to 
understand the likely future demands, 
the consequent models of care, and 
the likely pattern of movement within 
the hospital to develop site master plan 
of 10- 15 years,” says South Canterbury 
District Health Board’s Chief Executive, 
Nigel Trainor. 

 “These approved refurbishments are 
continued developments toward the 
site master plan following on from the 
recently refurbished Gardens Block. We 

are ‘chipping away’ at the developments 
required, whilst keeping the big picture 
plan in sight as we go.

 “The focus of the refurbishments will be 
on the front of hospital as it is currently 
a key issue.

These refurbishments will see  
improvements to the Emergency 
Department and ambulance bay, Out 
Patient Department, Medical Day Stay 
and the hospital café and are expected 
to be completed within two years,” 
explains Trainor.

This DHB has led a carefully considered 
journey to prepare a plan that is both 
affordable and has longevity to future 
proof our services as much as possible. 
Ultimately, it is about continuing to 
maintain and improve quality health care 
for the population of South Canterbury 
whilst being financially responsible.

The scope of this refurbishment is: 

 A new IL2 and IL4 (importance Level               
    defined by AS/NZS1170.0) building     
   that accommodates: 

    – Emergency Department clinical floor  
        space with new isolation facility and  
        new ambulance bay – IL4 

    –  Outpatient Department – emergency             
operating theatre capability – IL2 

Redevelopment of the front of 
hospital services: 

  X-ray room between ED and 
outpatients 

  Medical day stay - including   
 chemotherapy in existing cafeteria 

 Cafeteria in front foyer 

 Emergency Department.
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The Year in Review

Meeting the Health Targets
The Minister of Health set seven health targets for all district health boards to work towards 
in the 2014/15 year, challenging health professionals working in both the community and 
the hospital.  

Target 
2014/15

Result 
2013/14

Result 
2014/15

Percentage of patients admitted, discharged or 
transferred from the Emergency Department 
within six hours

95% 96% 97%

Percentage of improved access to elective 
surgery provided to patients

100% 104% 105%

Percentage of cancer patients receive their 
treatment within 62 days.

85% 100% 63%

Percentage of eight- month-olds fully 
immunised

95% 92% 92%

Percentage of hospitalised smokers provided 
with advice and help to quit smoking - In  
hospitals 

95% 99% 99%

Percentage of smokers provided with advice 
and help to quit smoking - In Primary Care

90% 97% 92%

Percentage of the eligible population who have 
had their cardiovascular risk assessed in the last 
five years.

90% 81% 88%

REVISION TO THE CANCER 
HEALTH TARGET 
From 1 October 2014 new faster cancer 
treatment target were introduced. 

The goal is to ensure that by June 
2017, 85% of patients will receive their 
first treatment within 62 days of seeing 
their general practitioner. That is the 
international gold standard for cancer 
treatment.

Target Met 
 2014/2015

Target Met 
 2014/2015

Revised 
Target

Hospital

Primary Care

Target Met 
2013/2014

Target Met 
2013/2014

Our results
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CERTIFICATION AT TALBOT PARK

A full certification audit of Talbot Park 
was undertaken on the 15th and 16th 
July and with the exception of one 
“low risk” finding under the “safe and 
appropriate environment” criterion all 
other standards were fully attained.

The Auditors made the comment that 
they were stunned by the difference 
in Talbot Park since the surveillance 
audit was undertaken last year.  They 
complemented the leadership at Talbot 
Park and made the comment that they 
were impressed how the staff now all 
worked together as a multi-disciplinary 
team and that the staff were very 
well utilised in providing care for the 
residents. They also commented on the 
understanding that staff now had of the 
standards and why they are required 
and also of the education being 
provided for staff.

They also reported good feedback from 
the residents and families they surveyed 
during the audit.

MEDCHART 

In May, SCDHB introduced MedChart 
for the electronic prescribing and 
administration of medicines at Timaru 
Hospital.

Affectionately called COWs (Computers 
on Wheels) the trolleys were installed 
for all adult inpatient wards in May. 
Children’s medication dosage relies 
on a complex weight formula and that 
aspect of the computer programme is 
being developed in Dunedin.

We know that paper-based prescribing, 
both in NZ and overseas, is associated 
with a high rate of medication errors, 
although very few of these errors go on 
to cause serious harm.

Electronic prescribing helps with 
prescribing, because staff with access 
can log on to MedChart from anywhere 
in the hospital, there are checks for 
errors and duplications, automatic 
warnings show up if a higher-than-usual 
dose is prescribed, and it is very clear 
when changes are made. Administration 
of medicines is easier, because 
prescriptions are clear and there is an 
overview of when medication is due.

When meds are due an alarm clock icon 
appears on screen against the patient’s 
name and if the meds are not due 
then that information cannot be easily 
accessed.

The introduction of the $300,000 
programme over three years was a big 
task with 400 staff members undergoing 
training for it. The system will have 
ongoing costs of about $50,000 a year 
for the licensing software, maintenance 
and replacements.

The Year in Review
Better Public Services

COW: Computer on Wheels is used for 
MedChart. 

Talbot Park 

Public confidence in the services provided at Timaru Hospital 
has always been strong. The hospital continued to make 
improvements to the quality, safety and efficiency of services in 
2014/15.  

We would like to acknowledge the 
great work and support provided by the 
Southern DHB team who were onsite to 
help with our implementation as well as 
our own working group.

SAFETy 1st 

A new electronic risk and incident 
management system for South Island 
DHBs called Safety 1st was introduced  
in May 2015. Safety 1st  provides an 
integrated and regional approach to 
capturing and reporting on information 
about incidents and risk.

Safety 1st is designed to make it easy 
for staff to report and enter valuable 
information about patient safety and 
risk, enabling DHBs to monitor what 
is and is not working well and support 
managers to continuously improve the 
care that is provided. Furthermore the 
new system makes it easy for staff to 
access and share clinical learnings from 
outcome reviews, enable the creation 
of consistent reporting and support the 
collection and monitoring of patient 
safety data. Training for all staff has 
been carried out and is ongoing. 
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Considerable work has been completed 
in the review of occupational therapy 
waiting list management achieving  
a reduction in waiting times and  
ensuring people have timely access 
to the equipment required to support 
them in their own homes. The DHB is 
participating as a pilot in the South 
Island implementation of the Calderdale 
Framework which is a workforce 
development tool for skill sharing 
and delegation. This is expected to 
increase patient safety and experience 
by reducing the number of health 
professionals involved in their care and 
also ensure that the DHB can meet the 
increasing demand for support services 
as our population continues to age.

The DHB has continued to participate 
in the local Positive Ageing Strategy 
Forum bringing a health perspective to 
the issues being considered.  

Work will continue into 2016 to 
complete implementation of the 
remaining recommendations from the 
Health of Older Persons Concept Plan.

WORKPLACE SAFETy 
MANAGEMENT  PRACTICES (WSMP) 

The South Canterbury District Health 
Board successfully participated in the  
ACC Workplace Safety Management 
Practices (WSMP) Audit on the 26th of 
May 2015. 

The full day audit of our health 
and safety policies, procedures, 
practices and environment resulted 
in an upgrade to secondary level 
accreditation from primary level. 

This outcome reflects the progress 
made from the last audit in April 2013 
and confirms the commitment across 
all levels of the workplace toward best 
practice health and safety.  

MATERNITy CLINICAL 
INFORMATION SySTEM (MCIS)

South Canterbury District Health 
Board was the first DHB in the South 
Island and first in New Zealand to 
fully implement the Maternity Clinical 
Information System (MCIS). MCIS is 
an electronic clinical information 
system that enables electronic access 
and transfer between maternity 
service providers, across disciplines 
and locations of care. MCIS supports 
the entire maternity journey, from 
confirmation of pregnancy, through 
to six weeks after the birth of the 
newborn.

CENTRE OF EXCELLENCE FOR THE 
HEALTH OF OLDER PEOPLE  IN 
SOUTH CANTERBURy

Steady progress continues to be made 
on the implementation of the  Health 
of Older Persons Centre of Excellence 
Concept Plan. 

All referrals for ongoing support 
services are now managed by the 
Needs Assessment and Coordination 
Service (NASC) which has streamlined 
the process and given all people 
equal access to support services. Wrap 
Around Services (WAS) are now in place 
supporting the older person to stay in 
their own home and receive assistance 
and ongoing treatment for up to six 
weeks rather than experiencing an 
admission to hospital or a lengthy 
hospital stay. An electronic community 
referral form has been developed and 
is expected to be trialed in 2015 to 
improve the quality of information 
being transferred between health 
providers.

 Advance Care Planning has been 
introduced with the DHB participating 
in the “Conversations that Count” day 
and working with health providers 
to support people to think about 
and record their wishes for future 
management of their health condition.  

The Year in Review

SCDHB Midwife Jessie Cooke and CPIT Midwife Kendra Short, visit new mother 
Roselyn Fauth and her daughter Medinella at their home. The pair were one of the 
first in the country to have their information added to the new Maternity Clinical 
Information System (MCIS). 

Better Public Services
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The Year in Review

An action plan to address the 
recommendations detailed by the 
Auditor has been developed and 
activity is well underway to ensure all 
actions are completed before SCDHB 
applies for re-audit in May 2016.

HEALTH PROMOTION IN SOUTH 
CANTERBURy 

The SCDHB Health Promotion Matrix 
provides a health promotion summary 
in a way that is unique nationally.

The Health Promotion steering group is 
made up of representatives that include 
stakeholder agencies at a district level. 
This group comes together to support a 
strategic direction for health promotion 
at a district level and ensure alignment 
of activities that are focused on 
improving health outcomes. 

The matrix provides an overview of 
the continuum of care that integrated 
what was happening in the primary 
and community settings with hospital 
services. This matrix not only provides 
an overview of all health promotion 
activities that are planned for the 
South Canterbury area but also means 
that progress and achievement of 
these activities can be monitored and 
reviewed. 

ERAS (Early Recovery After Surgery)

Enhanced Recovery is an evidence 
based approach to care. It is designed 
to prepare patients for, and reduce the 
total impact of, surgery, helping them 
to recovery more quickly. It is a multi-
modal approach similar to that of care 
bundles.

ERAS principles of care are focused on 
three key areas of preparing the patient 
for surgery, during surgery and after 
surgery. 

ERAS reduces the time that patients 
spend in hospital while maintaining 
quality. It allows patients to return 
home and to normal activities quickly.

The General Surgery ERAS project 
commenced formally on 8 October 
2014. This is a second ERAS project for 
SCDHB, Orthopaedic ERAS has been 
underway since 2012.

Since October the General Surgery 
ERAS team have looked at patient 
satisfaction, reviewed and updated the 
Pre-operative Health Questionnaire. 
Currently they are updating Care 
Maps and Information booklets, and 
identifying improvements to steps in 
the patient journey.

At Timaru Hospital, ERAS was 
implemented for all elective colorectal 
surgery patients starting in April 2015. 
The aims of ERAS are to reduce surgical 
stress, reduce post-operative morbidity, 
reduce length of hospital stay and 
increase patient/staff satisfaction.

QUALITy ACCOUNTS

The second edition of SCDHB’s Quality 
Account was produced in December 
2014, and covered the year from 
July 2013 to June 2014. The account 
contained the standard and compulsory 
content commenting on Health 
Target and Quality and Safety Marker  

Better Public Services

performance, and Serious Adverse 
(Reportable) Events, alongside stories 
relating to quality initiatives SCDHB 
has implemented to improve health for 
South Cantabrians over the previous 
twelve months. It also included 
information on what we feel could be 
done better and what we have planned 
for the following year.  

Much of the content was influenced 
by the community feedback that 
we received from visiting local 
supermarkets (as reported in last 
year’s Annual Report). We also took 
a draft Quality Account to the South 
Canterbury International Festival 
in November, where we took the 
opportunity to gather further 
community feedback, and ran a 
competition to “Name Our Family” – the 
characters that lead people through the 
Quality Account (another innovation for 
this year).

SCDHB’s Quality Account, and its 
community feedback process, was 
presented at the National Quality 
Account Review workshop, at the 
request of the Health, Quality and 
Safety Commission.

The 2014-2015 Quality Account will 
again be drafted by November, and we 
will continue to seek community input 
and commentary into its content, and 
how we can make it a document that 
the community wants to read.
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We are Open for Better Care

New Zealand’s health and 
disability system already 
provides high standards of 
care very cost effectively. 
Health professionals have 
extensive knowledge, skills 
and commitment, and are 
already delivering excellent 
patient care.
However, we know patients 
are still being harmed – 
sometimes with serious and 
long-term consequences.
Open for Better Care is 
a national patient safety 
campaign co-ordinated by 
the Health Quality & Safety 
Commission. 

DRAMATIC REDUCTION IN 
SERIOUS FALLS

Staff at Timaru Hospital’s Assessment, 
Treatment and Rehabilitation (AT&R) 
have celebrated over two years without 
a serious harm fall in the ward.  

A new bundle of care was implemented 
in 2013 following a falls reduction 
project. Staff were sceptical at the 
beginning of the project as other 
projects and interventions had 
not shown any great benefit in 
reducing the number of falls which 
resulted in patients being harmed. 
Prior to the project staff reported 
that there was limited engagement 
with falls prevention strategies, 
assessments lacked multi-disciplinary 
team collaboration, limited family 
engagement/education and there was 
an attitude that falls were inevitable.

The falls prevention project worked 

The AT&R team celebrate their hard work and commitment to significantly reducing the 
falls rates in AT&R and having no falls with harm for over two years. 

from the bottom up with ward staff 
members making up the project 
team. The team used the Model for 
Improvement approach to implement 
changes to the ward. All staff were 
involved in trialing interventions and 
equipment using plan-do-study-act 
(PDSA) cycles. Using the PDSA cycles 
gave the staff the opportunity to 
feedback and make changes to their 
plans prior to implementation.

Today, in AT&R staff report that they 
have;

  An improved awareness and 
implementation of fall prevention 
strategies

  Staff who are able to identify patients 
at higher risk of falls and those who 
are at higher risk of harm from falls

  Resources that are directed to those 
who have the highest need

  No evidence of increased use of 

safety watches

  An intentional rounding plan (Care 
Calling) which is well utilised

  A heightened awareness of falls risk 
and interventions and we are able 
to collaborate as a team to develop 
individualised patient care plans

   Improved patient and family 
engagement

Staff are very proud of what they have 
achieved as is the rest of the SCDHB 
and the Board. They see improved team 
collaboration, with all team members 
aware of falls risk and collaboration 
where ‘falls are everybody’s 
responsibility’.  Multidisciplinary team 
members engage in answering call 
bells, patient and family education, 
intervening when patients at high 
risk of falling need assistance or are 
mobilising without recommended aid 
or supervision.
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A FOCUS ON REDUCING HARM 

The HQSC Quality and Safety markers 
have now been running for a full 
year, and they are proving useful in 
evaluating the success of the Open for 
Better Care campaign and to determine 
whether the desired changes in practice 
and reductions in harm and cost have 
occurred.

The QSMs concentrate on the four areas 
of harm covered by the campaign:

  falls

  healthcare associated infections 
(hand hygiene and central line 
associated bacteraemia) 

  surgery 

  medication. 

The process measures show whether 
the desired changes in practice have 
occurred at a local level and the 
outcome measures focus on harm and 
cost that can be avoided. 

The markers set the following 
thresholds for DHBs’ use of  
interventions and practices known to 
reduce patient harm:

  90 percent of older patients are given 
a falls risk assessment 

  90 percent compliance with 
procedures for inserting central line 
catheters 

  70 percent compliance with good 
hand hygiene practice 

  All three parts of the WHO surgical 
safety checklist used in 90 percent of 
operations. 

A new Marker has been introduced 
this year under the “surgery” topic. 
It focuses on the prevention of 
Surgical Site Infections, measuring the 
administration of antibiotic within an 
hour prior to surgery beginning. The 
national goal is that this would occur in 
100% of the measure operations.

The next tranche of data that will be 
released by the HQSC will be for the 
June to September period, and is likely 
to be released publicly in early 2015.

SCDHB PERFORMANCE

Falls

By Quarter 4 of 2014/2015, SCDHB 
were reporting 96.9% of older patients 
were receiving a falls risk assessment.  
We continue to perform well in the 
falls metrics, and we will continue our 
focus on falls prevention activities. 
Of particular note is the continued 
success of the falls prevention work 
in the Assessment, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation (AT&R) ward where we 
recently celebrated two years since the 
last serious harm fall in the area. We 
have also taken the falls improvement 
tools and processes out into our Aged 
Care facility this year, and are sharing 
our learnings through the South 
Canterbury Community Falls Steering 
Group, regionally through the South 
Island Quality and Safety, and Health of 
Older Persons Alliances, and nationally 
with the Health Quality and Safety 
Commission.

Perioperative Harm 

SCHDB is again a strong performer in 
this area, where we are reported as 
using all three parts of the Surgical 
Checklist in 96% of operations audited 
(Quarter 4 2014/2015 results). This 
continues to exceeded the national 
threshold of 90%.

Hand Hygiene

We have seen further, excellent 
improvement in hand hygiene 
compliance over the 2014/2015 year, 
with our hand hygiene moment 
compliance rates now running at or 
above 80%, which is already meeting 
or exceeding the adjusted target 
for the coming year. This continued 
improvement would appear to support 
our strategy of targeting training and 
education to the least well performing 
staff groups.

Surgical Site Infection

SCDHB has seen an improvement from 
80% to between 95% and 100% for the 
administration prior to surgery. We have 
also seen pleasing improvements in the 
administration of cefazolin and the use 
of appropriate skin preparations.

Quality and Safety Markers

Penny Dewar, Nurse Coordinator, Quality and Chris Eccleston General Manager Clinical 
Governance promote National Patient Safety Week Stall in November 2014. 
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Wananga South Canterbury 
DHB serves all people living 
in South Canterbury. Our 
boundaries are the Rangitata 
River in the north, the Waitaki 
River in the south and Aoraki/
Mount Cook in the west. 
The area has a resident 
population of 55,260 (1.28% 
of the national population). 
The Ngai Tahu Iwi through 
their Runaka at Arowhenua 
(Temuka) and Waihao 
(Morven) are the mana 
whenua of South Canterbury.

MĀORI HEALTH

As an agent of the Crown, the Board 
is committed to the principles of 
the Treaty of Waitangi, in particular 
Māori participation and partnership 
in health planning and services, and 
protection of Māori well-being. The 
Arowhenua Whānau Services continue 
to work together to improve the health 
and wellbeing of whānau in South 
Canterbury including monitoring of 
key health indicators and providing 
education through huis and a 
celebration of culture in the annual 
FLAVA Festival. 

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE yEAR
n  Arowhenua Whānau Services ran         

several educational wananga over the     
year which were well attended and   
well received.

n Dementia Hauora August 2014

n Alzheimer Wananga September 2014

n Arthritis Wananga November 2014

n Christmas Health Fair December 2014

n Winter warmers April 2015

n Further Wananga are planned for the    
    spring and summer

The Year in Review
Māori Health and High Needs Population

In April 2015 Winter Warmers Day 
was held by Arowhenua Whānau 
Services. Winter Warmers Day was 
all about the importance of wool and 
warmth and wholesome food in the 
winter. The day included education and 
tips of how to keep our homes warm 
and dry and  recipes and recipe testing 
for families on a budget.  Women from 
The South Canterbury community knit 
and pass on the knitting for Arowhenua 
Whānau Services to give to whānau 
over the winter period. The hui also 
Included Fire Safety Timaru Fire Service 
provided free fire alarms with fittings to 
vulnerable families.

A fabulous day with lots of interest.

Pictured: Top; Student nurse Louise 
Cross.  Bottom right; Sally Feely, who 
was the brains behind the Winter 
Warmers Day Hui.
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performing arts (waiata, whaikōrero, 
short stage drama, music, dance and 
other stage performances) and visual 
arts (two- and three-dimensional 
paintings, drawings, sculptures, and 
weaving).

The festival is organised by a steering 
group that included teachers, 
mainstream and Māori Health 
providers, and a number of community 
organisations who volunteer their time 
to this Festival.

FLAVA FESTIVAL

Ka Toi Māori o Aoraki was an initiative 
that derived from the now historical 
Māori Youth Suicide Prevention strategy, 
Kia Piki Te Ora o Te Taitamariki. 

This strategy was rolled out in South 
Canterbury through the formation of 
a key community team responsible for 
planning and implementing initiatives 
aimed at building resilience in Māori 
youth and supporting whānau/
community connectedness. Initially 
groups of rangatahi and tamariki were 
exposed to Te Ao Māori through local 
wananga and supported to travel to 
specialized wananga e.g. Taiaha, Career 
Workshops, Kapahaka etc.  

In 2006, Kia Piki Te Ora o Te Taitamariki 
rangatahi identified an interest in 
developing a local schools competition 
to promote pride in their identity, to 
showcase their talents and to express 
their creativity. Several Hui later, the 
concept of an annual schools cultural 
festival was born. Rakatahi decided the 
theme for this initial festival would be 
FLAVA signifying the bringing together 
of people of all flavours in a celebration 
of culture. Although officially known 
as Ka Toi Māori o Aoraki, FLAVA is a 
name that appears to have stuck with 
the festival and has morphed into an 
anagram: Future; Learning; Achievement; 
Virtue; Autonomy 

Future: motivation to look forward to our 
future

Learning: motivation to want to grow 
and expand your mind

Achievement: motivation to work hard 
and attain excellence

Virtue: motivation to be worth to self, 
family and community

Autonomy: motivation to help and be of 
service to others. 

Ka Toi Māori o Aoraki is open to all 
early childhood, primary, secondary 

schools and tertiary education within 
the Arowhenua rohe (bordered by the 
Southern Alps and between the Waitaki 
and Rakaia rivers). 

This year was the Ninth FLAVA FESTIVAL. 
This celebration of all things Te Ao Māori 
(the world of Māori) is continuing to be 
a growing success. So much so that the 
FLAVA Komiti has decided that there will 
be a separate event held for the Early 
Childhood sector. This year nine early 
childhood centres participated with 
many whānau supporting. It was held 
at the Caroline Bay Hall on the 31 July. A 
fabulous morning was had by all.  

This year’s theme was Nga Purakau o 
te ao Māori- Māori Myths and Legends. 
Māori Myths and Legends provide 
Tamariki with a sense of identity and 
connection to the whenua.

This year there where eighteen primary 
schools and six secondary schools 
entered.

There was a large amount of entries 
in the Kapahaka (traditional dance 
and waita) performing arts (waiata, 
whaikōrero, short stage drama, music, 
dance and other stage performances) 
and visual arts (two- and three-
dimensional paintings, drawings, 
sculptures, and weaving).

Groups have devoted long hours to 
perfecting their skills and the audience 
was treated to some incredibly colourful 
and exciting performances.

The FLAVA festival is growing in numbers 
every year and provides students with an 
opportunity to discover and experience 
a breath taking lens into Te Ao Māori (the 
world of Māori), and an awe-inspiring 
opportunity to showcase and view 
their wonderful talent. At the same 
time, whānau, friends and the wider 
community were able to view the festival 
and enjoy a truly bicultural festival that 
was comprised of three categories: 
kapahaka (traditional dance and waiata), 

FLAVA Festival 2015
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The Year in Review
Health Scorecard for Māori and 
High Needs Population
Year ending 30 June 2015
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Age Group Māori %  Total
Population 

0-4 years 415 12% 3200

5-14 years 782 11% 6995

15-24 years 679 9% 6906

25-44 years 875 7% 12219

45-64 years 621 4% 16060

65+ years 185 2% 11764
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  Māori Non-Māori 

GP Consultations  9748 200872

 per patient 2.82 3.75

Other Consultations 3116 13894

 per patient 0.90 1.23

ASH Rates per 100,000 (30/6/14)

 0-74 age group 149% 93%

 0-4 age group 118% 75%

 45-64 age group 160% 95%

Cancer treatment commencing
within four weeks  100% 100%
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The Year in Review
Health Scorecard for Māori and 
High Needs Population
Year ending 30 June 2015
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Indicator Māori  Total Target 

8 month old childhood immunisation 89.5% 91.9% 95% 

2 year old childhood immunisation 100% 95.3% 95% 

HPV immunisation for girls 
12+ years (1999 cohort) 64% 48% 65% 

Flu vaccine for 65 years+ 58.1% 67.3% 70% 

Breast screening for women 
45 - 69 years 75% 79.9% 70% 

Cervical screening for women 
20 -69 years 48.6% 76% 80% 

Cardiovascular risk assessment 
5 yearly 35+ years 78% 87.7% 90% 

Diabetes detection 108.6% 105.2% 90% 

Smoking status recorded 91.3% 93.9% 90% 

Diabetes annual review 75% 80% 72% 

Brief Advice & Cessation Support
given in primary care 88.5% 91.6% 90% 

Brief Advice & Cessation Support
given in secondary care  99% 98.9% 95% 

Access rates 0 - 19 4.74% 5.9% 5% 

Access rates 20 - 64 7.06% 4.19% 3.6% 

Access rates 65+ 2.31% 2.4% 1%
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Statement of Financial Responsibility 

Murray Cleverley
Chair
30 October 2015

Nigel Trainor 
Chief Executive
30 October 2015

Ron Luxton
Deputy Chair
30 October 2015

 

FOR yEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
1. The Board and management of South Canterbury District Health Board accept 
responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the statement 
of service performance and for the judgements used in them.

2.  The Board and management of South Canterbury District Health Board accept 
responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control designed to 
provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.                     

3.  In the opinion of the Board and management of South Canterbury District Health 
Board, the annual financial statements and the statement of service performance for 
the year ended 30 June 2015 fairly reflect the financial position and operations of South 
Canterbury District Health Board.
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Statement	  of	  Significant	  Accounting	  Policies	  	  
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015 
 
Reporting Entity 
South Canterbury District Health Board (SCDHB) is a Health Board established by the New 
Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000. SCDHB is a crown entity in terms of the Crown 
Entities Act 2004, owned by the Crown and domiciled in New Zealand.  SCDHB is a reporting 
entity for the purposes of the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000 and the 
Crown Entities Act 2004 as amended by the Crown Entities Amendment Act 2013. The DHB’s 
ultimate parent is the New Zealand Crown 
 
SCDHB has designated itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for financial reporting purposes. 
 
SCDHB’s activities involve delivering health and disability services and mental health services 
in a variety of ways to the community. 
 
In addition, funds administered on behalf of patients have been reported as a note to the 
financial statements. 
 
Reporting period 
The financial statements for the DHB are for the year ended 30 June 2015, and were 
approved by the Board on 30 October 2015. 
 
Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Crown Entities Act 2004, which includes the requirement to comply with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice in New Zealand (NZGAAP).  
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 PBE Accounting 
Standards and comply with those standards. 
 
These financial statements are the first financial statements presented in accordance with the 
new PBE accounting standards. There are no material adjustments arising on transition to the 
new PBE accounting standards. 
 
These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of SCDHB. The 
Board and management are responsible for ensuring that the Financial Statements are 
prepared using appropriate assumptions and that all disclosure requirements have been met. 
 
Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, using historical costs, except 
that land and buildings are stated at their fair value. Accounting policies have been applied 
consistently throughout the period. 
 
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars (NZD), rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars. 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PBE accounting standards 
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
Further details are given in the Accounting Policies for ‘Critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions’ and ‘Critical judgements in applying accounting policies’. 
  
Basis for Consolidation 
SCDHB is required under the Crown Entities Act 2004 (the "Act") to prepare consolidated 
financial statements in relation to the group for each financial year. Consolidated financial 
statements for the group have not been prepared using the acquisition method due to the 
small size of its subsidiary, HSC Charitable Trust, which means that the parent and the group 
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amounts are not materially different. Information relating to HSC Charitable Trust is 
separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  
 
Accounting Policies 
The following particular accounting policies which materially affect the measurement of 
financial results and financial position have been applied consistently in preparing these 
Financial Statements: 
 
1. Revenue 
Crown Funding 
The majority of revenue is provided through an appropriation in association with a Crown 
Funding Agreement. Revenue is recognised monthly in accordance with the Crown Funding 
Agreement payment schedule, which allocates the appropriation equally throughout the year. 
 
Goods Sold and Services Rendered 
Revenue from goods sold is recognised when SCDHB has transferred to the buyer the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and SCDHB does not retain either 
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 
effective control over the goods sold. 
 
Revenue from services is recognised, to the proportion that a transaction is complete, when it 
is probable that the payment associated with the transaction will flow to SCDHB and that 
payment can be measured or estimated reliably, and to the extent that any obligations and all 
conditions have been satisfied by SCDHB. 
 
Revenue relating to Service Contracts 
SCDHB is required to expend all monies appropriated within certain contracts during the year 
in which it is appropriated. Should this not be done, the contract may require repayment of the 
money or SCDHB, with the agreement of the Ministry of Health, may be required to expend it 
on specific services in subsequent years. The amount unexpended is recognised as a liability. 
 
Interest Revenue 
Interest revenue is accrued using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method applies this rate to the principle 
outstanding to determine the interest income each period. 
 
Donated or Subsidised Assets 
Donations and bequests to SCDHB are dealt with by the Aoraki Foundation through the 
Health Endowment Fund. 
 
Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration the fair value of the asset 
received is recognised as revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and 
Expenses. The fair value of donated assets is determined as follows: 

• For new assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to the retail price of the 
same or similar assets at the time the asset was received. 

• For used assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to market information 
for assets of a similar type, condition and age. 

 
2.  Expenditure 
Interest expense 
Interest expense is accrued using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest 
rate exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the 
financial liability to that liability’s net carrying amount. The method applies this rate to the 
principal outstanding to determine the interest expense each period. 
 
Capital Charge  
The capital charge is recognised as an expense in the financial year to which the charge 
relates.  
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Borrowing Costs 
Borrowings costs are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which they are 
incurred. 
 
3.  Leases 
Finance leases 
Leases which effectively transfer to SCDHB substantially all the risks and benefits incidental 
to ownership of the leased items are classified as finance leases.  These are capitalised at 
the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments.  
The leased assets and corresponding lease liabilities are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position.  The leased assets are depreciated over the period SCDHB is expected to 
benefit from their use. 
 
Operating leases 
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the leased items are classified as operating leases.  Payments under these 
leases are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
4.   Financial Instruments 
Financial Assets 
Financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair value through profit 
and loss are recorded at fair value with any realised and unrealised gains or losses 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses. A financial asset is 
designated at fair value through profit and loss if acquired principally for the purpose of selling 
in the short term. It may also be designated into this category if the accounting treatment 
results in more relevant information because it either significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch with related liabilities or is part of a group of financial assets that is managed and 
evaluated to fair value basis. Gains or losses from interest, foreign exchange and fair value 
movements are separately reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and 
Expenses. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss, 
expected for impairment losses, recognised directly in equity. When these assets are 
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses. 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are recognised 
initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. Loans and receivables issued with duration less than 
12 months are recognised at their nominal value, unless the effect of discounting is material. 
Allowances for estimated recoverable amounts are recognised when there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired. Interest, impairment losses and foreign exchange gains 
and losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.  
 
5.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and deposits with a 
maturity of no more than three months from the date of acquisition.  Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of SCDHB’s cash management are included 
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 
 
6.  Trade and Other Receivables 
Trade and other receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for 
impairment. 
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The receivable is considered impaired when there is evidence that SCDHB will not be able to 
collect the amount due. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the carrying 
amount of the receivable and the present value of the amounts expected to be collected. 
 
Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified. 
 
7.  Investments 
Bank Term Deposits 
Investments in bank term deposits are measured at the amount invested. 
 
After initial recognition, investments in bank deposits are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 
 
Equity investments 
SCDHB’s investment in Health Benefits Limited is stated at cost less impairment losses. 
 
Investments in other equity securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets and 
are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss, except for impairment losses, 
recognised directly in equity. When these assets are derecognised, the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Revenue and Expenses. 
 
8.  Inventories 
Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not 
supplied on a commercial basis is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement 
cost.  
 
The cost of purchased inventory held for distribution is determined using the weighted 
average cost formula. 
 
Any write down from cost to current replacement cost, or reversal of such a write down, is 
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the write down. 
 
9.  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Classes of Property, Plant and Equipment 
The major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows: 
• freehold land 
• freehold buildings 
• plant, equipment and vehicles 
• fixture and fittings 
• work in progress 
 
Owned assets 
Land is measured at fair value and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation. Except for the assets vested from the hospital and health service (see below), 
all other asset classes are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
costs. 
 
Fixed assets vested from the Hospital and Health Service 
Under section 95(3) of the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000, the assets of 
Health South Canterbury Limited (a Hospital and Health Service) vested in SCDHB on 1 
January 2001.  Accordingly, assets were transferred to SCDHB at their net book values as 
recorded in the books of Health South Canterbury Limited.  In effecting this transfer, the 
Board has recognised the cost and accumulated depreciation amounts from the records of 
Health South Canterbury Limited.  The vested assets will continue to be depreciated over 
their remaining useful lives. 
 
10.  Revaluation of Land and Buildings 
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Land and Buildings are revalued with sufficient regularity, and at least every five years, to 
ensure that the carrying amount at balance date is not materially different to fair value. Fair 
value is determined by an independent registered valuer and based upon market evidence 
land and net replacement cost for buildings. If there is evidence supporting a material 
difference, then the asset class will be revalued. Revaluation movements are accounted for 
on a class-of-asset basis. The results of any revaluing are credited or debited to an asset 
revaluation reserve for that class of asset. Where this results in a debit balance in the asset 
revaluation reserve, this balance is expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue 
and Expenses. Any subsequent increase on revaluation that off-sets a previous decrease in 
value recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses will be 
recognised first in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses up to the amount 
previously expensed, and then credited to the revaluation reserve for that class of asset. 
 
11.  Additions to Fixed Assets 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is 
probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to 
SCDHB and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
 
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated. 
 
In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at its cost. 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, it is recognised at its fair 
value as at date of acquisition. 
 
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to SCDHB and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
 
The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
surplus or deficit as they are incurred. 
 
12.  Disposal of Fixed Assets 
When a fixed asset is disposed of, any gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses and is calculated as the difference between the sale 
price and the carrying value of the fixed asset. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts 
included in the revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are transferred to general 
funds. 
 
13.  Depreciation of Fixed Assets 
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on all fixed assets, other than freehold land, 
at rates which will write-off the cost (or revaluation) of the assets to their estimated residual 
values over their useful lives.  The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major 
classes of assets have been estimated as follows: 
 Buildings 33 to 65 years 1.5 – 3.0% 
 Building Fit-outs 3.5 to 20 years 5 – 28.6% 
 Plant and Equipment 2 to 10 years 10 – 50% 
 Motor Vehicles 3 to 5 years 20 – 33.3% 
 
Capital work in progress is not depreciated.  The total cost of a project is transferred to 
freehold buildings and/or plant and equipment on its completion and then depreciated. 
 
14.  Intangible Assets 
Software 
Computer software that is acquired by SCDHB is stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.  
 
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to 
acquire and bring to use the specific software. 
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The receivable is considered impaired when there is evidence that SCDHB will not be able to 
collect the amount due. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the carrying 
amount of the receivable and the present value of the amounts expected to be collected. 
 
Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified. 
 
7.  Investments 
Bank Term Deposits 
Investments in bank term deposits are measured at the amount invested. 
 
After initial recognition, investments in bank deposits are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 
 
Equity investments 
SCDHB’s investment in Health Benefits Limited is stated at cost less impairment losses. 
 
Investments in other equity securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets and 
are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss, except for impairment losses, 
recognised directly in equity. When these assets are derecognised, the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Revenue and Expenses. 
 
8.  Inventories 
Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not 
supplied on a commercial basis is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement 
cost.  
 
The cost of purchased inventory held for distribution is determined using the weighted 
average cost formula. 
 
Any write down from cost to current replacement cost, or reversal of such a write down, is 
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the write down. 
 
9.  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Classes of Property, Plant and Equipment 
The major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows: 
• freehold land 
• freehold buildings 
• plant, equipment and vehicles 
• fixture and fittings 
• work in progress 
 
Owned assets 
Land is measured at fair value and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation. Except for the assets vested from the hospital and health service (see below), 
all other asset classes are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
costs. 
 
Fixed assets vested from the Hospital and Health Service 
Under section 95(3) of the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000, the assets of 
Health South Canterbury Limited (a Hospital and Health Service) vested in SCDHB on 1 
January 2001.  Accordingly, assets were transferred to SCDHB at their net book values as 
recorded in the books of Health South Canterbury Limited.  In effecting this transfer, the 
Board has recognised the cost and accumulated depreciation amounts from the records of 
Health South Canterbury Limited.  The vested assets will continue to be depreciated over 
their remaining useful lives. 
 
10.  Revaluation of Land and Buildings 
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Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are 
recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include software development employee costs 
and, if applicable, an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 
 
Staff training costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. 
 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when 
incurred. 
 
Costs associated with development and maintenance of SCDHB’s website are recognised as 
an expense when incurred. 
 
Amortisation 
Amortisation is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful 
lives are as follows: 
 

         Software            2 to 10 years       10-50% 
 
15.  Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 
SCDHB does not hold any cash-generating assets. Assets are considered cash-generating 
where their primary objective is to generate a commercial return. 
 
Non-cash-generating Assets  
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets held at cost that have a finite useful life 
are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable service amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher of an 
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
 
Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated replacement 
cost approach, restoration cost approach or a service units approach. The most appropriate 
approach used to measure value in use depends on the nature of the impairment and 
availability of information. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the asset is regarded 
as impaired and the carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount and an 
impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. 
 
The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. 
 
16.  Payables 
Short term payables are recorded at their face value. 
 
17.  Borrowings 
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition, all borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and 
redemption value being recognised in the surplus or deficit over the period of the borrowings 
on an effective interest basis. 
 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless SCDHB has an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance date. 
 
18.  Employee Entitlements 
Short term employee entitlements 
Employee entitlements that are due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employee renders the related service are measured based on accrued 
entitlements at current rates of pay. 
 



SCDHB Annual Report 201536

Statement of Significant 
Accounting Policies

Untitled 1:Users:imac:Library:Containers:com.apple.mail:Data:Library:Mail Downloads:Statement of 
Significant Accounting Policies Annual Report 2015 Draft 2.0.doc 7/9 21-Sep-15 

These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date and annual leave earned to but 
not yet taken at balance date.  
 
Entitlements for retirement gratuities, senior doctor conference and sabbatical leave, long 
service leave, sick leave and senior doctor costs that are expected to be settled within 12 
months after balance date are calculated on an actuarial basis. 
 
Long term employee entitlements 
Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related service, such as retirement gratuities, senior doctor 
conference and sabbatical leave, long service leave, sick leave, and senior doctor study costs 
are calculated on an actuarial basis. 
 
The actuarial calculations are based on: 

• likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to 
entitlement, the likelihood that staff will reach the point of entitlement and contractual 
entitlement information, and 

• assumptions of discount rates, salary escalation rates, resignation rates and (for 
sabbatical leave) the take up rate. 

  
Superannuation Schemes 
Defined contribution schemes 
Obligations for contributions to Kiwisaver, the Government Superannuation Fund and the 
State Sector Retirement Savings Scheme are accounted for as defined contribution 
superannuation schemes and are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit as 
incurred. 
 
Defined benefit schemes 
SCDHB belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Scheme (the scheme), which is 
managed by the Board of Trustees of the National Provident Fund. The scheme is a multi-
employer defined benefit scheme. 
 
Insufficient information is available to use defined benefit accounting, as it is not possible to 
determine from the terms of the scheme, the extent to which the surplus/deficit will affect 
future contributions by individual employers, as there is no prescribed basis for allocation. The 
scheme is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. 
 
19.  Provisions 
A provision is recognised for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a 
present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to 
settle the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense and included in “finance 
costs”. 
 
Restructuring 
A provision for restructuring is recognised when an approved detailed formal plan for the 
restructuring has either been announced publicly to those affected, or for which 
implementation has already commenced. 
 
Onerous contacts 
A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits or service 
potential to be derived from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting the 
obligations under the contract. 
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The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. 
 
20.   Equity 
Equity is measured as the difference between total assets and total liabilities. Equity is 
disaggregated and classified into the following components: 

• General Funds (contributed capital); 
• Accumulated surplus/(deficit); 
• Equity from donated assets; and 
• Property revaluation reserves 

 
Property revaluation reserves 
These reserves relate to the revaluation of land and buildings to fair value. 
 
21.  Goods and Services Tax 
All items in the financial statements are exclusive of goods and services tax (GST) with the 
exception of receivables and payables, which are stated with GST included.  Where GST is 
irrecoverable as an input tax it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the IRD is included as part of the 
receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
The net GST paid to, or received from, the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and 
financing activities, is classified as a net operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 
 
22.  Taxation 
SCDHB is exempt from income tax as it is a public authority. 
 
23.  Budget Figures 
The budget figures are those approved by the Board and published in its Annual Plan, which 
is the external accountability document prepared by SCDHB under the Crown Entities Act 
2004. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practice and are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Board for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 
 
24.  Cost Allocation 
SCDHB has arrived at the net cost of service for each significant activity using the following 
cost allocation system.  Direct costs are charged directly to output classes.  Indirect costs are 
charged to output classes based on cost drivers and related activity/usage information.  The 
cost of internal services not directly charged to outputs is allocated as overheads using 
appropriate cost drivers, such as actual usage, staff numbers and floor area.   
 
25.   Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 
In preparing these financial statements, SCDHB has made estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent 
actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 
 
Estimating the fair value of land and buildings 
Land and buildings were revalued, by a registered valuer, as at 30 June 2014 to fair value. 
SCDHB have relied upon this valuation and the assumptions made by the valuer in 
determining the fair value of land and buildings. The significant assumptions applied in 
determining the fair value of land and buildings are disclosed in note 7. 
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Estimating useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment 
At each balance date, the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed. Assessing the appropriateness of useful life and residual value estimates of 
property, plant and equipment requires a number of factors to be considered such as the 
physical condition of the asset, expected period of use of the asset by SCDHB and expected 
disposal proceeds from the future sale of the asset. 
 
An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will affect the depreciation expense 
recognised in the surplus or deficit and the carrying amount of the asset in the Statement of 
Financial Position. SCDHB minimises the risk of this uncertainty by: 

• Physical inspection of assets; 
• Asset replacement programs. 

 
SCDHB has not made significant changes to past assumptions concerning useful lives and 
residual values. 
 
Employee entitlements 
SCDHB has relied upon actuarial assessment for retirement gratuities, long service leave and 
some other employee entitlements. 
 
26.   Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying accounting policies. 
 
Leases classification 
Determining whether a lease agreement is a finance lease or an operating lease requires 
judgement as to whether the agreement transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to SCDHB. 
 
Judgement is required on various aspects that include, but are not limited to, the fair value of 
the leased asset, the economic life of the leased asset, whether or not to include renewal 
options in the lease term and determining an appropriate discount rate to calculate the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. Classification as a finance lease means the 
asset is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as property, plant and equipment, 
whereas for an operating lease no such asset is recognised. 
 
SCDHB has exercised its judgement on the appropriate classification of the lease for the MRI 
scanner and has determined it to be a finance lease. 
 
27.  Changes in Accounting Policies 
There have been no changes in accounting policies during the financial year.  
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South Canterbury District Health Board
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Note
Budget Actual Actual

2015 2015 2014

Revenue 1 179,868 186,434 179,359
Other Operating Revenue 2 1,652 1,487 1,644
Finance Revenue 4a 1,612 1,827 1,671
Total Revenue 183,132 189,748 182,674

Employee Benefit Costs 3 60,682 59,126 57,650
Outsourced personnel and other services 8,531 11,020 10,715
Clinical supplies 8,748 9,508 9,629
Infrastructure and non-clinical expenses 10,955 13,177 11,815
Payments to non-DHB health providers 61,017 64,358 60,221
IDF Outflows 25,807 24,508 24,426
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7&8 3,709 3,882 3,687
Finance costs 4b 340 316 326
Capital charge 5 2,008 2,160 2,075
Other operating expenses 6 1,268 1,513 1,455
Total Expenses 183,065 189,568 181,999

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) 67 180 675

Other Comprehensive Revenue and 
Expenses
Item that will not be reclassified to surplus or (deficit)

Gain on property revaluation -                   -                   2,327
Total Other Comprehensive Revenue 
and Expenses -                   - 2,327

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE 
AND EXPENSES 67 180 3,002

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.



SCDHB Annual Report 201540

Financial Statements 
South Canterbury District Health Board
Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Budget Actual Actual
2015 2015 2014

Balance at 1 July 2014 26,415 28,921 26,136

Comprehensive revenue/(expense)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 9 67 180 675
Other Comprehensive Revenue 9 -                  2,327

Total comprehensive revenue 67 180 3,002

Capital Movements

Repayment to Crown 9 (317) (216) (217)
Contribution from Crown 9 -                  -                  -

Total of Capital Movements (317) (216) (217)

Balance at 30 June 2015 26,165 28,885 28,921

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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South Canterbury District Health Board
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Note
Budget Actual Actual

2015 2015 2014
Public Equity

General Funds 9 4,006 4,272 4,488
Accumulated Surplus 9 11,054 11,319 11,082
Equity from Donated Assets 9 1,859 1,721 1,778
Revaluation Reserve 9 9,246 11,573 11,573
Total Equity 26,165 28,885 28,921

REPRESENTED BY:

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 11,763 16,463 22,458
Financial Assets 11 -                   3,000 12,778
Debtors and other receivables 12 4,610 5,879 5,067
Inventories 13 970 864 920
Patient Trust Funds 10 25                11 30

Total Current Assets 17,368 26,217 41,253

Non Current Assets
Financial Assets 11 12,809 13,512 298
Property, plant and equipment 7 38,531 33,691 32,342
Intangible assets 8 747 768 704

Total Non Current Assets 52,087 47,971 33,344

TOTAL ASSETS 69,455 74,188 74,597

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Creditors and other payables 14 11,760 12,079 12,952
Employee entitlements 15 10,817 11,585 11,091
Borrowings 16 -                   66 12,778
Finance Lease Liability 17 169              169 169
Patient Trust Funds 10 25                11 30

Total Current Liabilities 22,771 23,910 37,020

Non Current Liabilities
Term Loans 16 12,778         13,025 -
Finance Lease Liability 17 1,181           1,011 1,180
Employee Entitlements 15 6,560 7,357 7,476

Total Non Current Liabilities 20,519 21,393 8,656

TOTAL LIABILITIES 43,290 45,303 45,676

NET ASSETS 26,165 28,885 28,921

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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South Canterbury District Health Board
Statement of Cashflows
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Note
Budget Actual Actual

2015 2015 2014
CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:
Receipts from Ministry of Health & Other 
Revenue 181,555 186,771 180,873
Interest Received 1,613 1,827 1,671

183,168 188,598 182,544
Cash was applied to:
Payments to suppliers & employees 181,013 183,269 174,125
Capital Charge 1,980 2,160 2,075
Interest Paid 324 316 326
GST (net) -                 56 132

183,317 185,801 176,658
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating 
activities 18 (149) 2,797 5,886

CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                 14 -
Proceeds from Sale of Investment -                 - -
Term Deposits Matured -                 12,778 -
Decrease in Special Funds -                 - -

-                 12,792 -
Cash was applied to:
Purchase of fixed assets 9,457 5,297 2,036
Purchase of Investments 3,436 298
Term Deposits over 1 year - 12,778 -

9,457 21,511 2,334
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing 
activities (9,457) (8,719) (2,334)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:
New Borrowings - MOH -                 12,778 -                
New Borrowings - Energy Efficiency -                 329 -                
New Finance Lease -                 - -                
Proceeds from Equity injections -                 - -                

-                 13,107 -                
Cash was applied to:
Finance Lease repayment -                 169 169
Repayment of Loans -                 12,795 -                
Repayment of Equity (216)           216 217

(216)           13,180 386
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 
activities 216            (73) (386)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (9,390)        (5,995) 3,166
Opening cash and cash equivalents 21,153       22,458 19,292

Closing cash and cash equivalents 10 11,763       16,463 22,458

Made up of:
Balances at bank 11,763 16,463 22,458

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

The GST (net) component of operating activities reflects net GST paid and received with the Inland Revenue 
Department. The GST (net) component has been presented on a net basis as the gross amounts do not provide 
meaningful information for financial statements purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
South Canterbury District Health Board
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Actual Actual
2015 2014

1.  Revenue

Health & Disability Services (MoH 
contracted Revenue) 177,979 170,862
ACC Contracted Revenue 1,965 1,690
Inter District Patient Inflows 3,709 3,956
Other Health Revenue 2,781 2,851

186,434 179,359

2. Other Operating Revenue

Gain on sale of property, plant and 
equipment 16 39
Donations and bequests received - 7
Rental Income 192 165
Other Non-health Revenue 1,279 1,433

1,487 1,644

3. Employee benefit costs
Wages and salaries 59,619 55,211
Contributions to defined contribution 
plans 1,202 1,128
Increase /(decrease) in employee 
benefit provisions (1,695) 1,311

59,126 57,650

4a Finance revenue
Interest Revenue 1,827 1,671

1,827 1,671

4b Finance costs
Interest Expense 316 326

316 326

5. Capital charge

6. Other operating expenses

Fees to Auditor:
116 113

Directors' fees and expenses 344 323
Impairment of receivables (bad & 
doubtful debts) 6 5
Write down of inventory 160 112
Operating Lease Expense 887 902

1,513 1,455

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to Kiwisaver, State Sector 
Retirement Savings Scheme and the DPB Contributors Scheme

Operating Leases. The DHB leases a number of residential buildings and equipment (including office and 
clinical equipment). The leases terms vary, typically from one to 5 years. None of the leases include 
contingent rentals.

South Canterbury DHB pays a monthly capital charge to the Crown based on the greater of its actual or 
planned closing equity balance for the month. An annual washup adjustment is done after 30 June each 
year. The capital charge rate for the year ended 30 June 2015 was 8% (2014: 8%).

     Audit fees for financial statement audit
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South Canterbury District Health Board
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

7. Property, plant and equipment
Land Buildings Plant & 

equipment
Leased 
Assets

Motor 
vehicles

Work in 
Progress

TOTAL

Cost or Valuation

Balance at 1 July 2013 2,463 23,355 27,443 1,686 1,767 - 56,714
Additions - 194 1,126 - 190 183 1,693
Revaluations 475 (2,163) - - - - (1,688)
Disposals - - (114) - (48) - (162)
Balance at 30 June 2014 2,938 21,386 28,455 1,686 1,909 183 56,557

Balance at 1 July 2014 2,938 21,386 28,455 1,686 1,909 183 56,557
Additions - 98 1,241 - 329 3,296 4,964
Revaluations - - - - - - -
Disposals - - (857) - (130) - (987)
Balance at 30 June 2015 2,938 21,484 28,839 1,686 2,108 3,479 60,534

Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses

Balance at 1 July 2013 - 2,502 20,835 42 1,496 - 24,875
Depreciation expense - 1,513 1,715 169 119 - 3,515
Impairment losses - - - - - - -
Disposals - - (113) - (48) - (160)
Revaluations - (4,015) - - - - (4,015)
Balance at 30 June 2014 - - 22,437 211 1,567 - 24,215

Balance at 1 July 2014 - - 22,437 211 1,567 - 24,215
Depreciation expense - 1,534 1,763 168 148 - 3,613
Impairment losses - - - - - - -
Disposals - - (857) - (128) - (985)
Revaluations - - - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2015 - 1,534 23,343 379 1,587 - 26,843

Carrying amounts

At 1 July 2013 2,463 20,853 6,608 1,644 271 - 31,839

At 30 June and 1 July 2014 2,938 21,386 6,018 1,475 342 183 32,342

At 30 June 2015 2,938 19,950 5,496 1,307 521 3,479 33,691

Impairment
Impairment testing carried out has not revealed any assets requiring write-down due to impairment losses.

Valuation

Land  

Buildings

Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a number of significant assumptions. Significant assumptions include:
-     The replacement asset is based on the replacement with modern equivalent Assets with adjustments where appropriate for 
      optimisation due to over-design or surplus capacity.

-   Straight-line depreciation has been applied in determining the depreciated replacement cost value of the asset.
Non-specialised buildings (for example, residential buildings) are valued at fair value using market-based evidence. Market rents and capitalisation rates are 
applied to reflect market value. These valuations include adjustments for estimated building strengthening costs for earthquake prone buildings and the 
associated lost rental during the time to undertake the strengthening work.

-    The replacement cost is derived from recent construction contracts of similar assets and Property Institute of New Zealand cost 
      information.

Land is valued at fair value using market-based evidence based on its highest and best use with reference to comparable land values. Adjustments have 
been made to the "unencumbered" land value for land where there is a designation against the land or the use of the land is restricted. These adjustments 
are intended to reflect the negative effect on the value of the land where an owner is unable to use the land more intensely.

Restrictions on the DHB's ability to sell land would normally not impair the value of the land because it has operational use of the land for the foreseeable 
future and will receive substantially the full benefits of outright ownership.

-    For the DHB's earthquake prone buildings that are expected to be strengthened, the estimated earthquake strengthening costs have 
      been deducted off the depreciated replacement cost.

-   The remaining useful life of the assets is estimated.

Land and Buildings were valued to fair value as at 30 June 2014 by  an independent registered valuer, John Dunckley, of Darroch Ltd a Fellow of the Property 
Institute and Institute of Valuers of New Zealand. The total fair value of land and buildings valued by the valuer amounted to $24,041,498 as at 30 June 2014. 
The valuation conforms to International valuation standards and was based on an optimised depreciation replacement cost methodology.
A review of financial reporting values by Colliers International concluded that there was no material movement in the value of the land and buildings in the past 
twelve months.

Specialised hospital buildings are valued at fair value using depreciated replacement cost because no reliable market data is available for such buildings.
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South Canterbury District Health Board
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Restrictions on title

8. Intangible Assets
Software Other TOTAL

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2013 1,616 - 1,616
Additions 346 - 346
Disposals - - -
Balance at 30 June 2014 1,962 - 1,962

Balance at 1 July 2014 1,962 - 1,962
Additions 334 - 334
Disposals - - -
Balance at 30 June 2015 2,296 - 2,296

Accumulated amortisation and 
impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2013 1,084 - 1,084
Amortisation expense 174 - 174
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 30 June 2014 1,258 - 1,258

Balance at 1 July 2014 1,258 - 1,258
Amortisation expense 270 - 270
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 30 June 2015 1,528 - 1,528

Carrying amounts

At 1 July 2013 532 - 532

At 30 June and 1 July 2014 704 - 704

At 30 June 2015 768 - 768

9. Public equity

     Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves

General 
funds

Accumulated 
Surplus

Equity from 
donated 
assets

Revaluation 
reserve - land 

Revaluation 
reserve - 

buildings

Special 
funds

Total equity

Balance at 1 July 2013 4,705 11,324 861 2,085 7,161 26,136
Surplus/(deficit) - 675 - - - 675
Transfer from accumulated surplus - (917) 917 - - -
Revaluation of land and buildings - - - 475 1,852 2,327
Contribution from the Crown - - - - - -
Repayment to the Crown (217) - - - - (217)
Balance at 30 June 2014 4,488 11,082 1,778 2,560 9,013 0 28,921

Balance at 1 July 2014 4,488 11,082 1,778 2,560 9,013 0 28,921
Surplus/(deficit) - 180 - - - 180
Transfer from accumulated surplus - 57 (57) - - 0 -
Revaluation of land and buildings - - - - - -
Contribution from the Crown - - - - - -
Repayment of equity (216) - - - - (216)
Balance at 30 June 2015 4,272 11,319 1,721 2,560 9,013 0 28,885

There are no restrictions over the title of SCDHB's intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged 
as security for liabilities. All software has been purchased.

Titles to land transferred from the Crown to SCDHB are subject to a memorial in terms of the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975 (as amended by the Treaty of 
Waitangi (State Enterprises) Act 1988). The effect on the value of assets resulting from potential claims under the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975 cannot be 
quantified.

South Canterbury District Health Board does not have full title to Crown land it occupies, but transfer is arranged if and when land is sold. Some of the Board's 
land is subject to Waitangi Tribunal claims. The disposal of certain properties may be subject to the provisions of section 40 of the Public Works Act 1981.

The unspent mental health ring-fence portion of retained earnings increased to $0.453 million (30 June 
2014: $0.321 million)
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South Canterbury District Health Board
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

10. Cash and cash equivalents
Actual Actual

2015 2014

Cash on hand and at bank (495) (135)
Cash equivalents - term deposits 2,900 -
Other cash and cash equivalents 14,058 22,593
Total cash and cash equivalents 16,463 22,458

11. Investments

Current investments are represented by:

Term deposits 3,000 12,778
Total current portion 3,000 12,778

Non-current investments are represented by:

Term deposits 12,778 -
Shares 734 298
Total non-current portion 13,512 298

Total Investments 16,512 13,076

There were no impairment provisions for investments.

Maturity analysis and effective interest rates of term deposits

12. Debtors and other receivables
Actual Actual

2015 2014

Trade Debtors 1,221 1,318
Less: Provision for impairment 4 5

1,217 1,313
Accrued Income 4,567 3,577
Prepayments 95 177

Total receivables & prepayments 5,879 5,067

Receivables from sale of goods and services (exchange transactions) 2,905 2,609
Receivables from grants (non-exchange transactions) 2,974 2,458

The carrying value of receivables approximates their fair value.

Balance at 1 July (5) (29)
Additional provisions made (4) (5)
Receivables written  off 5 29
Recovery of amounts already provided - -
Balance at 30 June (4) (5)

The DHB had an equity investment in Health Benefits Limited ("HBL"). HBL proposes to implement finance, 
procurement and supply chain shared services on behalf of all New Zealand District Health Boards 
("DHBs"). Capital contributions have been made to HBL by the DHBs by the issue of B Class shares. Health 
Benefits Limited is an unlisted company. Accordingly, there are no published price quotations for this 
investment. 

Two term deposits have been taken for a term longer than 12 months. The deposits mature in June 2018 
and have an effective average interest rate of 4.57%.

Trade debtors have been evaluated for impairment and, where impairment has been identified, provision 
has been made.  Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

The carrying amounts of call and term deposits approximate their fair value.

SCDHB maintains deposits on call with Health Benefits Limited (NZ Health Partnership Limited at 1 July 
2015) at variable rates of interest and these are measured at cost.

The carrying value of cash at bank and term deposits with maturity dates of three months or less 
approximates their fair value.

SCDHB administers certain funds on behalf of patients. These funds are held in a separate bank account 
and total $11,108 (2014: $29,485)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Actual Actual
2015 2014

13. Inventories
Pharmaceuticals 315 348
Theatre supplies 436 449
Central stores 30 32
Other supplies 83 91
Total inventories 864 920

14. Creditors and other payables
Trade creditors 945 1,417
Capital Charge due 70 122
Income in advance 28 261
Accrued expenses 8,852 9,337
Taxes payable (GST and PAYE) 2,184 1,815
Total Payables and Accruals 12,079 12,952

Payables for goods and services (exchange transactions) 9,895 11,137
Payables for taxes payable (non-exchange transactions) 2,184 1,815

15. Employee entitlements

Accrued salaries and wages 1,595 3,202
Annual Leave 6,143 6,175
Maternity Leave - 31
Sick Leave 146 119
Retirement Gratuities 731 675
Senior Doctor Conference Leave 216 214
Senior Doctor Sabbatical Leave 29 31
Long Service Leave 270 283
Senior Doctor Study Costs 385 361
Restructuring provision 2,070 -
Total current portion 11,585 11,091

Sick Leave 293 242
Retirement Gratuities 4,207 4,383
Senior Doctor Conference Leave 432 428
Senior Doctor Sabbatical Leave 691 609
Long Service Leave 963 947
Senior Doctor Study Costs 771 722
Other Employee Entitlements - 145
Total non-current portion 7,357 7,476

Total employee entitlements 18,942 18,567

Actual Actual
2015 2014

Balance at 1July - -
Additional provision made 2,070 -
Amounts used - -
Disused amounts reversed - -

Balance at 30 June 2,070 -

The write-down of inventories held for distribution amounted to $158,419 (2014: $111,655). There have 
been no reversals of write-downs.

No inventories are pledged as security for liabilities but some inventories are subject to retention 
of title clauses (Romalpa clauses). 

Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, 
therefore the carrying value of creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.

Employee entitlements for retirement gratuities, senior doctor conference leave, senior doctor sabbatical 
leave, long service leave, sick leave and senior doctor study costs were actuarially revalued as at 30 June 
2015 by Aon Consulting services NZ Ltd. The most important key assumptions used in calculating this 
liability include the discount rates, the salary escalation rate, resignation rates and (for sabbatical leave) the 
take up rate. Any changes to these assumptions will affect the carrying amount of the liability.

Current employee entitlements are represented by:

The restructuring provision represents the estimated cost for redundancy payments arising from the 
restructure, which was announced in May 2015.

Non-current employee entitlements are represented by:

Restructuring provision
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

16. Borrowings
Actual Actual

2015 2014

Current portion - 12,778
Non current portion 12,778 -

12,778 12,778

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Authority (EECA)

Current portion 66 -
Non current portion 247 -

313 -

Repayable as follows:
Not later than one year 66 12,778
Later than one, not later than two years 66 -
Later than two, not later than five years 12,959 -
Beyond five years -                   -                   

13,091 12,778

Interest rates:
3.23% 2.50%

Borrowing facilities:

17. Finance Lease Liability

Actual Actual
2015 2014

Not later than one year 169 169
Later than one year and not later than five years 674 674
Later than five years 337 506
Total present value of minimum lease payments 1,180 1,349

Current portion 169 169
Non current portion 1,011 1,180
Total present value of minimum lease payments 1,180 1,349

Finance Lease

Current borrowings are represented by:

d.  Disposals: Dispose of any of its assets except disposals made in the course of its 
ordinary business or disposals for full year value.

SCDHB has entered into a finance lease with Aoraki MRI Charitable Trust for the purchase of MRI scanner 
equipment. The lease is over a period of ten years from April 2013 and no interest or finance charges are 
payable.
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured, as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor  in the 
event of default.

SCDHB did not have an overdraft facility at 30 June 2015 (2014: $nil). 

b.  Loans and Guarantees: Lend money to another person (except in the ordinary course of 
business and then only on commercial terms), or give a guarantee, or

c. Change of Business: Make a substantial change in the nature or scope of its business as 
presently conducted, or

a.  Security Interest:  Create any security interest over its assets except in certain defined 
circumstances or

Ministry of Health interest rates

The MOH received a negative pledge from SCDHB.  Without the MOH's prior written 
consent, SCDHB cannot perform the following actions:

Secured loan - Ministry of Health (MOH)



SCDHB Annual Report 2015 49

Notes to the Financial Statements 
South Canterbury District Health Board
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Actual Actual
2015 2014

Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 180 675

Add/(less) non-cash items:
3,882 3,687

Total non cash items 3,882 3,687

Add/(less) item classified as investment activity:
Increase (decrease)in investments -                   -                   

Total investing activity items -                   -                   

Add/(less) movements in working capital items:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables and prepayments (811) (260)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 56 0
Increase/(decrease) in payables and accruals (1,111) 1,949
Increase/(decrease) in employee entitlements 613 (165)

Net working capital movement (1,253) 1,524

Add/(less) movements in other items:
Loss/(Gain) on sale of fixed assets (12) -                      

(12) -                   

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 2,797 5,886

19. Capital Commitments and Operating Leases
Actual Actual

2015 2014

Buildings 1,527           -                      
Plant and equipment 360              -                      
Future calls on Health Benefit Shares -                   436              
Total Capital Commitments 1,887           436              

Actual Actual
2015 2014

Not later than one year 380 548
Later than one year and not later than five years 662 1,042
Later than five years - -
Total Non-cancellable Operating Leases 1,042 1,590

20. Contingencies

Contingent Assets
The DHB has no contingent assets (2014 $nil).

Contingent Liabilities

There were no outstanding legal claims against the DHB at year end. 

Superannuation Schemes

Lawsuits against the DHB

South Canterbury DHB is a participating employer in the National Provident Fund's Defined Benefit Plan 
Contributors' Scheme (the scheme) which is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. If the other participating 
employers ceased to participate in the scheme, the DHB could be responsible for the entire deficit of the scheme. 
Similarly if a number of the employers ceased to participate in the scheme, SCDHB could be responsible for an 
increased share of the deficit.

As at 31 March 2012, the Scheme had a past surplus of $19.833 million (exclusive of Employer Superannuation 
Contribution Tax). This surplus was calculated using a discount rate equal to the expected return on net assets, 
but otherwise the assumptions and methodology were consistent with the requirements of PBE IPSAS 19.

The actuary of the Scheme has recommended that the employer contributions be suspended with effect from 1 
April 2013.

Operating Leases as Lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

The DHB leases a number of buildings, vehicles and office equipment under operating leases. 

Capital Commitments

Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation expense

18. Reconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) to net cash from operating activities
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21. HSC Charitable Trust

Shared Support Services

HSC Charitable Trust

Actual Actual
2015 2014

Remuneration 271 252
Full-time equivalent members 0.7 0.7
Leadership Team
Remuneration 1,885 1,817
Full-time equivalent members 11.0 11.0

2,156 2,069
Total Full-time equivalent personnel 11.7 11.7

Health Benefits Limited has been set up to implement Finance, Procurement and Supply Chain Services for 
all New Zealand District Health Boards. The programme will be funded by the District Health Boards making 
operating and capital contributions. The capital contributions are to be contributed by the issue of "B" Class 
shares.

During the year South Canterbury District Health Board paid Health Benefits Limited $425,390 (2014: 
$273,320) as a contribution to operating expenditure and for shared banking facilities and $436,000 (2014: 
$298,000) for "B" Class shares. The balance outstanding at year end was $nil (2014: $13,946).

Key management personnel include all Board members, the Chief Executive, and the other 
ten members of the senior leadership team.
There have been no transactions between the members or senior leadership with the 
Board in any capacity other than that in which they are employed except as follows:

There are close family members of key management personnel employed by SCDHB. The 
terms and conditions of those arrangements are no more favourable than the DHB would 
have adopted if there were no relationship to key management personnel.

SCDHB's predecessor was settlor of HSC Charitable Trust (the "Trust") and the Board has 
the right to appoint one of four trustees. The Trust is therefore deemed to be controlled by 
SCDHB in accordance with PBE IPSAS 6. The purposes of the Trust are:

Key management personnel compensation

- To actively foster, promote, encourage and develop the continuing 
   education of health professionals working at or from Timaru or 
   Talbot Hospitals in whatever area and in whichever manner the 
   trustees may time to time decide.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties other than those outlined 
above:

Total key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel

- To fund, foster, promote and encourage medical research and clinical 
   quality assurance by health professionals at Timaru and Talbot 
   Hospitals.

- Ron Luxton is the chairperson of Aoraki MRI Charitable Trust ("the Trust"). The Trust was 
established to raise funds for the provision of an MRI scanner, building and associated 
equipment for the benefit of the people of South Canterbury. In 2013 the Trust donated 
$1.2M to SCDHB for a building to house the MRI scanner, purchasing associated 
anaesthetic equipment and implementing the MRI service. The Trust also entered into a 
lease with the DHB for the provision of an MRI scanner. Details of the lease are disclosed 
in Note 17.

- To purchase and maintain facilities and equipment for use in the
  Timaru and Talbot Hospitals.

The Trust has not been consolidated. For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Trust had total 
revenue of $2,018 (2014 $7,160) and a net deficit of $5,340 (2014 net deficit $12,654). The 
Trust had assets of $137,828 (2014 $150,487) and liabilities of $662 (2014 $6,656) as at 
30 June 2015.

22. Related party transactions and key management personnel

South Canterbury District Health Board is a wholly owned entity of the Crown.  The Government significantly 
influences the role of the Board as well as being its major source of revenue.  

During the year ended 30 June 2015 the DHB invoiced the Trust a total of $nil (2014 $5,099 - research trials 
costs). The balance outstanding at year end was $nil (2014 $nil). 

Board Members

No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of receivables 
from related parties (2014 nil).

South Canterbury District Health Board enters into transactions with Government departments, state-owned 
enterprises and other Crown entities. Those transactions that occur within a normal supplier or client 
relationship on terms no more or less favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect South 
Canterbury District Health Board would have adopted if dealing with that entity at arm's length in the same 
circumstances have not been disclosed as related party transactions.
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23. Board Member Remuneration and Committee Member Payments

Board Members Payments & Attendance Committee Members Payments 
Member Fees Paid Attendance Member Fees Paid
Paul Annear $16,320 11 Paul Annear $5,625
Peter Binns $16,320 10 Peter Binns $5,000
Michael Boorer $16,320 9 Michael Boorer $5,208
Murray Cleverley (chairperson) $33,600 11 Murray Cleverley $12,500
Rene Crawford $16,320 11 Rene Crawford $5,000
Raeleen de Joux $16,320 8 Raeleen De Joux $7,292
Terry Kennedy $16,320 11 Suzanne Eddington $7,424
Ron Luxton (deputy chair) $20,400 9 Kevin Foley $2,500
Edie Moke $16,320 11 Janet Gilbert $2,083
Murray Roberts $16,320 10 Tony Gilchrist $1,667
Ngaire Whytock $16,320 11 Judy Hines $682
TOTAL $200,880 Tumanu Isara-Paiaaua $1,932

David Jack $2,500
Terence Kennedy $5,000
Ronald Luxton $8,125
Jo McLean $1,667
Mary McSherry $2,424
Christine Miller $1,667
Edie Moke $5,000
Pamela Niles $2,310
Diane Nutsford $1,667
Wendy Odey $1,250
Murray Roberts $5,625
Neil Savage $2,651
David Sibley $16,000
Karl Te Raki $1,667
Joanne Tinkler $1,515
Koriana Waller $3,750
Ngaire Whytock $5,625
Margaret Wiberg $1,667
Amanda Wills $3,333

$130,356

Member Liability Insurance

Termination Payments

The Board met 11 times in 2014/15. 

During the year ended 30 June 2015, one employee (2014: nil) received compensation and other benefits in relation to the cessation of their employment. No 
Board members received compensation or other benefits in relation to cessation of employment (2014: nil).

SCDHB has effected Directors and Officers Liability, General Liability, Employers Liability and Professional Indemnity insurance cover during the financial year, 
in respect of the liability or costs of Board members and employees.
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24. Employee remuneration
Actual Actual

Range 2015 2014
$550,001 - $560,000 1 -
$540,001 - $550,000 1 -
$490,001 - $540,000 - -
$480,001 - $490,000 - 1
$410,001 - $480,000 - -
$400,001 - $410,000 1 -
$380,001 - $400,000 - -
$370,001 - $380,000 - -
$360,001 - $370,000 2 -
$350,001 - $360,000 1 -
$340,001 - $350,000 4 -
$330,001 - $340,000 1 5
$320,001 - $330,000 2 2
$310,001 - $320,000 4 3
$300,001 - $310,000 1 2
$290,001 - $300,000 2 4
$280,001 - $290,000 4 2
$270,001 - $280,000 2 1
$260,001 - $270,000 1 2
$250,001 - $260,000 3 2
$240,001 - $250,000 2 4
$230,001 - $240,000 3 3
$220,001 - $230,000 3 1
$210,001 - $220,000 - 1
$200,001 - $210,000 3 -
$190,001 - $200,000 2 2
$180,001 - $190,000 2 2
$170,001 - $180,000 1 -
$160,001 - $170,000 2 -
$150,001 - $160,000 - 2
$140,001 - $150,000 3 4
$130,001 - $140,000 6 -
$120,001 - $130,000 1 4
$110,001 - $120,000 14 4
$100,001 - $110,000 20 16
TOTAL 92 67
Clinical staff 73 45
Management and other staff 19 22

25. Financial instrument risks

Market risk

Fair value interest rate risk

South Canterbury District Health Board is party to financial instruments as part of its 
everyday operations.  These include instruments such as bank balances, investments, 
accounts receivable, trade creditors and loans.

The current Chief Executive's salary is in the $270,001 to $280,000 range.

The Board has a series of policies providing risk management for interest rates, operating 
and capital expenditures denominated in a foreign currency, and the concentration of 
credit. The Board is risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activites.  
Its policies do not allow any transactions which are speculative in nature to be entered into.

The interest rates on SCDHB's cash and investments are disclosed in note 11. Interest rates on borrowings 
are disclosed in note 16.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 
market interest rates.  SCDHB's exposure to fair value interest rate risk is limited to its bank deposits and 
borrowings which are held at fixed rates of interest.
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Cash flow interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis

Foreign currency risk:

Credit Risk:

2015 2014
Cash at bank and term deposits              19,474               35,266 
Debtors and Other Receivables                5,879                 5,067 

             25,353               40,333 

Credit Quality of Financial Assets:

2015 2014
COUNTERPARTIES WITH CREDIT RATINGS
Cash at bank and term deposits
AA -  rating            19,474 35,266              
Total cash at bank and term deposits            19,474 35,266              

Gross 
Receivables 

2015

Impairment 2015 Gross 
Receivables 

2014

Impairment 
2014

Trade receivables
Not past due 662 -                           1,234 -                     
Past due 0-30 days 164 -                           73 -                     
Past due 31-120 days 395 4 11 5
Past due more than 1 year -                  -                           -                    -                     
Total 1,221 4 1,318 5

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in foreign exchange rates. SCDHB's Treasury policy allows for exchange hedging. However, there 
were no foreign currency forward exchange contracts (or option agreements) in place as at 30 June 2015 
(30 June 2014 Nil), nor were any hedged transactions undertaken during the course of the last two financial 
years.

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the Board, causing the Board to incur a 
loss. 

The Board invests in high quality financial institutions, local and government stock and limits the amount of 
credit exposure to any one financial institution.  Accordingly, the Board does not require any collateral or 
security to support financial instruments with organisations it deals with.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
a change in market interest rates. Investments and borrowings issued at variable interest rates expose 
SCDHB to cash flow interest rate risk.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are high due to the reliance on the Ministry 
of Health for 95% (2014: 97%) of South Canterbury District Health Board's revenue.  However the Ministry of 
Health is a high credit quality entity, being the Government-funded purchaser of health and disability support 
services.

As at 30 June 2015, if the 90 day bank bill rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower, with all other 
variables held constant, the surplus for the year would have been $97,000 (2014 $112,000) higher or lower. 
This movement is attributable to increased or decreased interest revenue on cash at bank and short term 
bank deposits. Borrowings and longer term deposits are at fixed rates. 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Board to concentrations of risk consist principally of cash 
and short term investments, and trade receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk exposure for each 
class of financial instrument is as follows:

SCDHB's treasury policy requires a spread of investment and borrowing maturity dates and a limit on 
variable rate percentages of total investments or borrowings. SCDHB currently has no variable interest rate 
investments or borrowings.

SCDHB's treasury policy is conservative and as such tends not to adopt a view as to interest rate outlook. 
Interest rate derivatives are thus not used to manage interest rate risk.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
Standard and Poor's credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. 

All impairments stated above have been calculated on individual accounts. No collective impairments have been included.

The status of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Liquidity risk

Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash 
flows

Less than 1 
year

More than 1 
year

2015
Creditors and other payables 12,079 12,079 12,079 -                     
Borrowings 13,091 13,091 66 13,025
Finance Leases 1,180 1,180 169 1,011
Total 26,350 26,350 12,314 14,036

2014
Creditors and other payables 12,952 12,952 12,952 -                     
Borrowings 12,778 12,778 12,778 -                     
Finance Leases 1,349 1,349 169 1,180
Total 27,079 27,079 25,899 1,180

Classification and fair values

2015

Note Amortised 
Cost

Available for sale Carrying 
amount 
Actual

Fair Value         
Actual

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 16,463 - 16,463 16,463
Term Deposits >3 <12 months 11 3,000 - 3,000 3,000
Term Deposits >12 months 11 12,778 - 12,778 12,778
Trade and other receivables 12 5,879 - 5,879 5,879
Patient Trust Funds 10 11 - 11 11
Equity investments 11 734 - 734 734

38,865 - 38,865 38,865
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 12,079 - 12,079 12,079
Patient Trust Funds 10 11 - 11 11
Borrowings 16 13,091 - 13,091 13,091
Finance Lease Liability 17 1,180 - 1,180 1,180

26,361 - 26,361 26,361

2014

Note Amortised 
Cost

Available for sale Carrying 
amount 
Actual

Fair Value     
Actual

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 22,458 - 22,458 22,458
Term Deposits >3 <12 months 11 12,778 - 12,778 12,778
Term Deposits >12 months 11 - - - -
Trade and other receivables 12 5,067 - 5,067 5,067
Patient Trust Funds 10 30 - 30 30
Equity investments 11 298 - 298 298

40,631 - 40,631 40,631
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 12,952 - 12,952 12,952
Patient Trust Funds 10 30 - 30 30
Borrowings 16 12,778 - 12,778 12,778
Finance Lease Liability 17 1,349 - 1,349 1,349

27,109 - 27,109 27,109

26. Capital management

SCDHB manages its equity as a by-product of prudently managing revenues, expenses, 
assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings to ensure SCDHB effectively 
achieves its objectives and purpose, whilst remaining a going concern.

Liquidity risk represents the SCDHB's ability to meet its contractual obligations. The DHB evaluates its liquidity requirements 
on an ongoing basis. In general the DHB generates sufficient cash flows from its operating activities to meet its obligations 
arising from its financial liabilities and has cash equivalent balances and credit lines in place sufficient to cover potential 
shortfalls.

Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The classification and fair values together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position are as 
follows:

SCDHB has complied with the financial management requirements of the Crown Entities 
Act 2004 during the year.

SCDHB's capital is it's equity, which comprises accumulated funds and other reserves. 
Equity is represented by net assets.

SCDHB is subject to the financial management and accountability provisions of the Crown 
Entities Act 2004, which imposes restrictions in relation to borrowings, acquisition of 
securities, issuing guarantees and indemnities and the use of derivatives.

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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27. Post balance date events

Reclassification adjustments 

Recognition and measurement adjustments

On 31 July 2015 the SCDHB Board approved capital investment of $9.88 million to upgrade its front of hospital. The 
redevelopment will include a new north facing outpatients wing, an extension to the emergency department and a cafeteria 
upgrade.

29. Adjustments arising on transition to new PBE accounting standards

There have been no reclassifications on the face of  the financial statements in adopting the new PBE accounting standards.

There were no recognition and measurement adjustments to the 30 June 2014 comparative information resulting from the 
transition to the new PBE accounting standards.

Inter District flow expenditure was $1.299M less than budget as a consequence of less demand than had been planned for 
tertiary services at other District Health Boards.

28. Explanation of significant variances against budget

Payments to Non-DHB Providers were $3.341M greater than budget. Expenditure for Primary Care GP 's, Residential care 
and Talbot park were greater than budget. Pharmaceutical expenditure, which was less than budget, partialy off set the over 
budget expenditure.

Other Operating expenditure was $254K greater than budget mainly due to stock adjustments and rental expenditure

Clinical Supply expenditure were $761K greater than budget mainly due to Medical Supplies.

Total Expenditure, which was $6.503M greater than budget,  off set most of the additional revenue. 

Employee benefit costs were $1.56M less than budget but were off set by Outsourced Personnels cost which were $2.49m 
greater than budget. 

Infrastructure costs were $2.212M greater than budget due to restructuring costs, outsourced maintenance costs and 
consultant costs. 

Revenue was greater than budgeted by $6.617M mostly due to additional general practise revenue received from the Ministry 
of Health.

Explanations for significant variations from SCDHB's budgeted figures in the Statement of Intent are as follows:

On 10 July 2015, SCDHB signed an agreement to purchase the assets of Timaru Eye Clinic Limited, for $257,474. South 
Canterbury Eye Clinic Limited was formed as a subsidiary of the SCDHB on 6 August 2015, with the chief executive officer 
and the Board chair as the directors of the company.

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Cost of Services

Budget 2014/15 Actual 2014/15
REVENUE TOTAL $'000 TOTAL $'000

Prevention                    3,517                   3,157
 

Early detection and management                   39,861                 44,929
 

Intensive assessment and treatment                 108,710                110,418
 

Support and rehabilitation                   31,044                 31,244
 

Grand Total  183,132                189,748

EXPENDITURE TOTAL $'000 TOTAL $'000
Prevention                    3,517                   3,157

 
Early detection and management                   40,161                 44,161

 
Intensive assessment and treatment                 108,394                111,006

 
Support and rehabilitation                   30,993                 31,244

 
Grand Total  183,065                189,568

Surplus/(De�cit)                         67                      180
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GOOD EMPLOyER

Leadership, Accountability and 
Culture: Our leadership, working 
collaboratively within SCDHB and 
with other DHBs is key to provide 
direction and to ensure more patient 
focussed service delivery.  Improving 
clinical leadership and the integration 
of Primary and Secondary Care has 
and will continue to make a positive 
contribution in this regard. Clinical 
Governance is now established, 
strengthening its contribution to patient 
safety and oversight of clinical practice. 
The organisation is also continuing 
its structured approach to develop 
current and future clinical leaders. This 
process has been taken a further step 
by encouraging internal and external 
secondments and partnerships with 
other DHBs and Tertiary Institutions 
offering leadership/management 
training opportunities.

A number of engagement forums meet 
regularly to encourage a cooperative 
working environment. The staff forum 
led by the Chief Executive Officer, local 
Joint Consultative Committee (ASMS), 
Local Engagement Group (RDA) and 
Bi-Partite Action Group (All CTU affiliated 
unions) are examples.

Recruitment, Selection and Induction: 
SCDHB supports the attraction and 
retention of the right staff to meet our 
changing health needs and the building 
of capability as a priority. Initiatives 
are now established to encourage 
South Canterbury youth to choose a 
health career that meets the future 
health workforce needs and to support 
the on-going inclusion of the older 
workforce.  We also support the ongoing 
development of regional and national 
relationships to improve recruitment 
efforts and to strengthen the public 
health employer brand.

Equal Employment Opportunities; 
As a member to the EEO Trust we value 

the contribution a diverse workforce 
with different skills, experiences and 
perspectives makes and this is reflected 
in our approach to recruitment and the 
work environment we provide.

Safe and Healthy Environment: 
SCDHB aims to maintain a safe and 
healthy environment and therefore 
participates in the ACC Workplace Safety 
Management Practices Programme and 
regularly attends the ACC Forum. 

SCDHB follows a pro-active strategic 
approach to employee health by 
providing a number of initiatives to 
enable staff to understand and improve 
their own health. We have continued 
with our Health4you programme 
targeting improved nutrition and 
encouraging physical activity over the 
past year.  

The organisation does not tolerate 
any form of harassment or workplace 
bullying and ensures all staff are aware 
of policies and procedures to deal with 
such a situation. Employees are able to 
access independent and confidential 
Employee Assistance Programme 
Providers to which they may self refer.

SCDHB has increased training for health 
and safety representatives, chemical 
handlers and management to prepare 
all for the legislative changes, promoting 
ownership of health and safety and 
clarification of responsibilities.

SCDHB has made good progress 
implementing a workload acuity process 
under the Safe Staffing and Healthy 
Workplaces agenda in collaboration 
with the unions. Our Care Capacity 
Demand Management Council is now 
established and driving the effective 
implementation of the programme 
throughout the organisation.  

Remuneration and Recognition: 
We endeavour to remunerate all staff 
fairly and consistently, ensuring that 
remuneration and conditions are 

Good Employer

in line with collective employment 
agreements.  We also participate in 
initiatives which focus on determining 
new salary structures.

SCDHB has developed initiatives which 
enable staff to feel more valued and 
appreciated in an informal and formal 
way.

Employee Development: Our 
performance review process provides 
a means for two-way communication 
whereby all employees review 
their performance, progress career 
development and gain clear direction 
for the future. Managers are committed 
to the ongoing process of coaching, 
constructive feedback and formal 
appraisals which are linked to 
organisation goals and enable our 
organisation to move forward.

We continually align our learning and 
development strategy with strategic 
planning, workforce development 
and operational requirements and 
encourage a continuous learning 
culture.

Flexibility and work design:  The 
changing models of care, service 
delivery pressures and increased focus 
on productivity and sustainability 
resulted in the development of new 
positions interacting with various 
disciplines across primary and secondary 
services. For individuals who require 
flexible working arrangements SCDHB 
has a formal request process based 
on the Act for employees with caring 
responsibilities and other individual 
requests for flexibility are considered on 
a case by case basis. Currently 32% of 
staff are full-time employees, 47% are 
part-time and 21% are casual. We have 
engaged with our managers enhancing 
their awareness of legal changes and 
encouraged them to consider and 
implement flexible work options which 
benefit all parties.  
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Good Employer
Workforce as at 30 June 2015

Staff Mix by Gender                         Number             Percentage

Female                                                        791                    82.4%
Male                                                            169                    17.6%

TOTAL                                                          960                     100%

Staff Mix by Average Age                                  Age            

Administration/Management 50.4
Allied Health 47.5
Medical 46
Nursing 46.5
Support Personnel 50.8

Average age of all staff                                      47.5

Staff  Ethnicity             

AFRICAN

AMERICAN

ASIAN UNDEFINED

AUSTRALIAN

BRITISH/IRISH

CHINESE

COOK ISLD Māori

DUTCH

EUROPEAN UNDFIN

FIJIAN

FILIPINO

GERMAN

INDIAN

KOREAN

LATIN AMERICAN

MIDDLE EASTERN

NOT AVAILABLE

NZ EUROPEAN

NZ Māori

OBJECT TO THIS

OTHER

OTHER ASIAN

OTHER EUROPEAN

PACIFIC ISLANDER

SOUTHEAST ASIAN

SRI LANKAN

TONGAN

TOTAL

Staff Mix by Hours of Work (FTE)    Number          Percentage

Casual/Pool                                            198                        20.6%
Less than 0.25FTE                                   20                           2.1%
0.25 to 0.49 FTE                                       52                           5.4%
0.5 to 0.74 FTE                                       196                         20.4%
0.75 to 0.99 FTE                                     186                         19.4%
1 FTE                                                         308                         32.1% 

TOTAL                                                        960                        100%

Specific data is not currently available but individuals with 
disabilities applying for vacancies are given full  
consideration based on the requirements of the position.

Disability  

Number            

11

2

4

2

24

7

2

1

70

2

5

2

8

1

3

5

84

588

48

3

20

12

44

1

7

3

1

960
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Health Target Results
Shorter Stays 
in Emergency 
Departments

95 percent of patients will be admitted, discharged, or transferred from an 
emergency department (ED) within six hours. The target is a measure of 
the efficiency of flow of acute (urgent) patients through public hospitals 
and home again.

Improved Access to 
Elective Surgery

The volume of elective surgery will be increased by an average of 4000 
discharges per year. DHBs have negotiated local targets taking into 
consideration the health needs of their communities. Collectively these 
targets contribute to a national increase in elective surgery discharges. 

QUARTER PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS 
%

RANKING 
OUT OF 20 
DHBs

Q1 2012/13 97 2nd

Q2 96 5th

Q3 97 4th

Q4 96 6th

Q1 2013/14 97 2nd

Q2 96 4th

Q3 97 2nd

Q4 96 2nd

Q1 2014/15 96 4th 

Q2 96 5th

Q3 96 4th 

Q4 97 2nd
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QUARTER PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS 
%

RANKING 
OUT OF 20 
DHBs

Q1 2012/13 105 13th

Q2 103 14th

Q3 106 10th

Q4 106 10th

Q1 2013/14 107 8th

Q2 101 13th

Q3 103 12th

Q4 104 14th

Q1 2014/15 94 18th 

Q2 102 14th

Q3 99 19th

Q4 105 13th
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 This information should be read in conjunction with the details on the website www.health.govt.nz/healthtargets
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Faster Cancer  
Treatment

Health Target Results
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85 percent of patients receive their first cancer treatment (or other 
management) within 62 days of being referred with a high suspicion of 
cancer and a need to be seen within two weeks by July 2016, increasing 
to 90 percent by June 2017. Public reporting on the Faster cancer treat-
ment health target is based on six-months rolling data. *Revised health 
target

Increased 
Immunisation

95 percent of infants aged eight-months will have completed their  
primary course of immunisation (six weeks, three months and five 
months immunisation events) on time. The quarterly progress result 
includes children who turned eight months old during the three month 
period of the quarter and who were fully immunised at that stage.

 This information should be read in conjunction with the details on the website www.health.govt.nz/healthtargets

QUARTER PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS 
%

RANKING 
OUT OF 20 
DHBs

Q1 2012/13 100 1st

Q2 100 1st

Q3 100 1st

Q4 100 1st

Q1 2013/14 100 1st

Q2 100 1st

Q3 100 1st

Q4 100 1st

Q1 2014/15 100 1st

Q2 73 5th*

Q3 71 5th*

Q4 63 14th*

Percentage

Ranking in NZ

QUARTER PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS 
%

RANKING 
OUT OF 20 
DHBs

Q1 2012/13 91 6th

Q2 95 2nd

Q3 92 8th

Q4 88 16th

Q1 2013/14 94 4th

Q2 96 1st

Q3 94 3rd

Q4 92 9th

Q1 2014/15 97 1st

Q2 95 8th

Q3 94 9th

Q4 92 12th
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Health Target Results

 

 This information should be read in conjunction with the details on the website www.health.govt.nz/healthtargets

Better Help for  
Smokers to Quit

The target is that 95 percent of patients who smoke and are seen by a 
health practitioner in public hospitals, and 90 percent of patients who 
smoke and are seen by a health practitioner in primary care, are offered 
brief advice and support to quit smoking.  

More Heart  
and Diabetes Checks

90 percent of the eligible population will have had their cardiovascular 
risk assessed in the last five years.

QUARTER PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS  
(in hospitals) 
%

PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS  
(in Primary 
Care) %

RANKING 
OUT OF 20 
DHBs

Q1 2012/13 97 46* 6th

Q2 97 53* 5th

Q3 98 82* 2nd

Q4 99 76* 3rd 

Q1 2013/14 98 83 2nd

Q2 99 86 2nd

Q3 98 90 2nd

Q4 99 97 5th

Q1 2014/15 99 78 15th

Q2 99 86 13th

Q3 98 93 8th

Q4 99 92 9th
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QUARTER PERCENTAGE 
OF PATIENTS 
%

RANKING 
OUT OF 20 
DHBs

Q1 2012/13 50 17th

Q2 54 16th

Q3 59 15th

Q4 64 15th

Q1 2013/14 68 14th

Q2 72 15th

Q3 78 15th

Q4 81 15th

Q1 2014/15 84 15th

Q2 84 17th

Q3 87 16th

Q4 88 16th
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Statement	  of	  Service	  Performance	  	  

Improving	  Health	  Outcomes	  for	  our	  Population	  
	  
WHAT	  ARE	  WE	  TRYING	  TO	  ACHIEVE?	  
	  
DHBs	  are	  expected	   to	  deliver	  against	   the	  national	  health	   sector	  outcomes:	   “All	  New	  Zealanders	   lead	   longer,	  
healthier	   and	   more	   independent	   lives”	   and	   ‘The	   health	   system	   is	   cost	   effective	   and	   supports	   a	   productive	  
economy’	  and	  to	  meet	  Government	  commitments	  to	  deliver	  ‘better,	  sooner,	  more	  convenient	  health	  services’.	  
	  
The	  mission	  statement	  of	  the	  South	  Canterbury	  District	  Health	  Board	  (SCDHB)	   is	  “to	  enhance	  the	  health	  and	  
independence	  of	  the	  people	  of	  South	  Canterbury”.	   	  Over	  the	   long	  term,	  we	  aim	  to	  make	  positive	  changes	   in	  
the	  health	  status	  of	  our	  population.	  	  As	  the	  major	  funder	  and	  provider	  of	  health	  and	  disability	  services	  in	  South	  
Canterbury,	   the	   decisions	  we	  make	   about	  which	   services	  will	   be	   delivered	   have	   a	   significant	   impact	   on	   our	  
population	  and,	  if	  coordinated	  and	  planned	  well,	  improve	  the	  efficiency	  and	  effectiveness	  of	  the	  whole	  South	  
Canterbury	  health	  system.	  	  
	  
This	  section	  presents	  an	  overview	  of	  how	  we	  are	  succeeding	  in	  meeting	  those	  commitments	  and	  improving	  the	  
health	  and	  wellbeing	  of	  our	  population.	   	  There	   is	  no	  single	  measure	  that	  can	  demonstrate	  the	   impact	  of	  the	  
work	  DHBs	  do,	  so	  a	  mix	  of	  population	  health	  and	  service	  access	  indicators	  are	  used	  as	  proxies	  to	  demonstrate	  
improvements	  in	  the	  health	  status	  of	  the	  population	  and	  the	  effectiveness	  of	  the	  health	  system.	  
	  
In	  developing	  its	  strategic	  framework,	  the	  South	  Island	  DHBs	  identified	  three	  strategic	  regional	  outcome	  goals.	  	  
To	   achieve	   these	   goals	   they	   have	   agreed	   a	   number	   of	   key	   strategies	   which	   will	   be	   achieved	   through	   the	  
delivery	  of	  regional	  initiatives	  and	  the	  collective	  activity	  of	  all	  five	  South	  Island	  DHBs.	  
	  
South	  Island	  DHBs	  have	  identified	  four	  collective	  outcomes	  where	  individual	  DHB	  performance	  will	  contribute	  
to	  regional	  success	  -‐	  along	  with	  a	  core	  set	  of	  associated	  outcomes	  indicators,	  which	  will	  demonstrate	  whether	  
they	  are	  making	  a	  positive	  change	  in	  the	  health	  of	  their	  populations.	  	  These	  are	  long-‐term	  outcome	  indicators	  
(5-‐10	  years	  in	  the	  life	  of	  the	  health	  system)	  and	  as	  such,	  the	  aim	  is	  for	  a	  measurable	  change	  in	  health	  status	  
over	  time,	  rather	  than	  a	  fixed	  target.	  
	  

• Outcome	  1:	  People	  are	  healthier	  and	  take	  greater	  responsibility	  for	  their	  own	  health.	  
A	  reduction	  in	  smoking	  rates.	  
A	  reduction	  in	  obesity	  rates.	  

• Outcome	  2:	  People	  stay	  well	  in	  their	  own	  homes	  and	  communities.	  
A	  reduction	  in	  acute	  medical	  admission	  rates.	  

• Outcome	  3:	  People	  with	  complex	  illnesses	  have	  improved	  health	  outcomes.	  
A	  reduction	  in	  acute	  readmission	  rates.	  
A	  reduction	  in	  all	  cause	  mortality	  rates.	  

• Outcome	  4:	  People	  experience	  optimal	  functional	  independence	  and	  quality	  of	  life.	  	  
An	  increase	  in	  the	  proportion	  of	  the	  population	  over	  75	  living	  in	  their	  own	  homes.	  
	  

	   	  

The 2014/15 Vote Health Estimates of Appropriations noted that performance information for 
selected Non-departmental Appropriations (Health Workforce Training and Development,  National 
Child health Services, National Contracted Services, National Disability Support Services, National 
Elective Services, National Emergency Services, National Health Information Systems, National 
Maternity Services, National Mental health Services, National Personal Health Services, and Primary 
Health Care Strategy) would be reported in part through DHBs 2014/15 Annual Reports.

The Ministry of Health has advised DHBs that the Minister of Health will report this information 
instead of DHBs. Readers wishing to view the overall budget and performance information for these 
selected Non-departmental Appropriations will be able to refer to the Minister of Health’s 2014/15 
Vote Health Non-Departmental Expenditure report. This report will be made available on the Ministry 
of Health’s website.
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South	  Island	  Intervention	  Logic	  Framework	  
	  
The	   following	   intervention	   logic	   diagram	  demonstrates	   the	   value	   chain:	   how	   the	   services	   that	   an	   individual	  
DHB	  chooses	  to	  fund	  or	  provide	  (outputs)	  will	  have	  an	  impact	  on	  the	  health	  of	  their	  population	  and	  result	  in	  
the	  achievement	  of	  desired	  longer-‐term	  regional	  outcomes	  and	  the	  expectations	  and	  priorities	  of	  Government.	  
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HOW	  HAVE	  WE	  PERFORMED?	  

STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  1:	  People	  are	  healthier	  and	  take	  greater	  responsibility	  for	  their	  own	  
health	  

Outcome:	  A	  reduction	  in	  smoking	  rates.	   Outcome	  Measure	  Long	  Term	  (5	  –	  10	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  the	  population	  (15+)	  who	  smoke.	  

Comment	  
The	  DHBs	  result	  for	  2011/14	  has	  been	  updated	  
and	  is	  based	  on	  the	  previous	  three	  years	  data	  
pooled.	  	  The	  NZHS	  was	  first	  undertaken	  in	  
1992/93,	  with	  further	  surveys	  in	  1996/97,	  
2002/03	  and	  2006/07.	  	  The	  Ministry	  of	  Health’s	  
wider	  health	  survey	  programme	  also	  included	  
surveys	  on	  adult	  and	  child	  nutrition;	  tobacco,	  
alcohol	  and	  drug-‐use;	  mental	  health;	  and	  oral	  
health.	  	  From	  2011	  the	  Ministry	  integrated	  the	  
NZHS	  and	  surveys	  from	  its	  wider	  survey	  
programme	  into	  a	  single	  survey,	  which	  is	  now	  in	  
continuous	  operation.	  	  The	  2013	  Census	  result	  
which	  is	  based	  on	  population	  based	  data	  
collection	  was	  16.2%.	  	  It	  is	  important	  to	  note	  
that	  the	  NZHS	  data	  collection	  is	  sample	  based	  
and	  that	  this	  sample	  size	  is	  very	  small.	  	  The	  
result	  for	  South	  Canterbury	  result	  is	  pleasing	  in	  
that	  it	  is	  below	  that	  recorded	  for	  the	  national	  
average.	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  National	  Health	  
Survey(NZHS)	  

	  

	  

Outcome:	  A	  reduction	  in	  obesity	  rates.	   Outcome	  Measure	  Long	  Term	  (5	  –	  10	  years):	  
The	  percentage	  of	  the	  population	  (15+)	  who	  are	  
obese.	  

Comment	  
The	  NZHS	  was	  first	  undertaken	  in	  1992/93,	  with	  
further	  surveys	  in	  1996/97,	  2002/03	  and	  
2006/07.	  	  The	  Ministry	  of	  Health’s	  wider	  health	  
survey	  programme	  also	  included	  surveys	  on	  
adult	  and	  child	  nutrition;	  tobacco,	  alcohol	  and	  
drug-‐use;	  mental	  health;	  and	  oral	  health.	  	  From	  
2011	  the	  Ministry	  integrated	  the	  NZHS	  and	  
surveys	  from	  its	  wider	  survey	  programme	  into	  a	  
single	  survey,	  which	  is	  now	  in	  continuous	  
operation.	  	  The	  DHB’s	  result	  sits	  slightly	  above	  
that	  recorded	  for	  the	  national	  average	  however	  
it	  is	  important	  to	  note	  that	  the	  NZHS	  data	  
collection	  is	  sample	  based	  and	  that	  this	  sample	  
size	  is	  very	  small.	  	  Obesity	  remains	  a	  major	  issue	  
in	  the	  health	  sector.	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  National	  Health	  
Survey(NZHS)	  
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STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  2:	  People	  stay	  well	  in	  their	  own	  homes	  and	  communities	  

Outcome:	  A	  reduction	  in	  acute	  medical	  
admissions.	  

Outcome	  Measure	  Long	  Term	  (5	  –	  10	  years):	  The	  
rate	  of	  acute	  medical	  admissions	  to	  hospital	  (age-‐
standardised,	  per	  100,000).	  

Comment	  
SCDHB’s	  result	  for	  2014/15	  shows	  a	  reduction	  
on	  previous	  years	  and	  is	  well	  below	  both	  the	  
South	  Island	  and	  NZ	  rate.	  	  This	  sustained	  
performance	  is	  largely	  due	  to	  effective	  primary	  
care	  management	  and	  the	  DHB’s	  continued	  
focused	  on	  supported	  self-‐management	  of	  long	  
term	  conditions	  through	  such	  programmes	  as	  
the	  Multi-‐condition	  Rehabilitation	  Programme	  
and	  preventative	  strategic	  such	  as	  the	  
Pneumovax	  programme.	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  South	  Island	  Alliance	  
Programme	  Office	   	  
	  

STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  3:	  People	  with	  complex	  illness	  have	  improved	  health	  outcomes	  

Outcome:	  A	  reduction	  in	  acute	  readmissions.	  
	  

Outcome	  Measure	  Long	  Term	  (5	  –	  10	  years):	  
The	  rate	  of	  acute	  readmissions	  to	  hospital	  within	  
28	  days	  of	  discharge.	  

Comment	  
The	  result	  for	  2014	  is	  comparable	  to	  previous	  
years	  and	  remains	  below	  the	  national	  average.	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  Ministry	  of	  Health	  

	  

	  

Outcome:	  A	  reduction	  in	  mortality	  rates.	  
	  

Outcome	  Measure	  Long	  Term	  (5	  –	  10	  years):	  The	  
rate	  of	  all	  cause	  mortality	  for	  people	  aged	  under	  
65	  (age	  standardised	  per	  100,000).	  

Comment	  
Mortality	  rates	  were	  last	  published	  in	  2012.	  	  
Results	  are	  presented	  for	  the	  South	  Island	  
population	  rather	  than	  at	  a	  DHB	  level.	  	  Rates	  for	  
both	  South	  Island	  Māori	  and	  non-‐Māori	  sit	  
below	  those	  for	  the	  respective	  NZ	  populations.	  
	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  South	  Island	  Alliance	  
Programme	  Office	   	  
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STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  4:	  People	  experience	  optimal	  functional	  independence	  and	  quality	  of	  
life	  

Outcome:	  An	  increase	  in	  the	  proportion	  of	  the	  
population	  living	  in	  their	  own	  home.	  
	  

Outcome	  Measure	  Long	  Term	  (5	  –	  10	  years):	  
The	  percentage	  of	  the	  population	  (75+)	  living	  in	  
their	  own	  homes.	  

Comment	  
SCDHB’s	  result	  for	  2014/15	  is	  comparable	  to	  the	  
previous	  year	  and	  remains	  above	  the	  South	  
Island	  rate.	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  South	  Island	  Alliance	  
Programme	  Office	  
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WHAT	  DIFFERENCE	  HAVE	  WE	  MADE	  FOR	  OUR	  POPULATION?	  	  

Nine	  impact	  measures	  (3-‐5	  years)	  supporting	  the	  four	  strategic	  goals	  demonstrate	  where	  we	  have	  
made	  a	  measurable	  contribution	  to	  the	  longer-‐term	  outcomes	  we	  are	  seeking.	  	  Chosen	  impacts	  
reflect	  areas	  of	  activity	  where	  the	  DHB	  can	  influence	  change	  and	  corresponding	  impact	  measures	  
help	  demonstrate	  the	  difference	  we	  are	  making	  in	  the	  health	  of	  the	  South	  Canterbury	  population.	  	  
Targets	  have	  been	  set	  against	  these	  impact	  measures	  in	  order	  to	  evaluate	  the	  impact	  of	  service	  
delivery	  over	  a	  three	  year	  period.	  	  This	  section	  provides	  an	  update	  on	  our	  progress.	  

STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  1:	  People	  are	  healthier	  and	  take	  greater	  responsibility	  for	  their	  own	  
health	  

Impact:	  More	  babies	  are	  breastfed.	   Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  babies	  fully/exclusively	  breastfed	  
at	  six	  weeks.	  

Comment	  
Results	  are	  comparable	  with	  the	  previous	  year	  
(data	  for	  Pacific	  people	  relates	  to	  small	  
numbers).	  	  The	  result	  for	  the	  total	  population	  is	  
above	  that	  for	  the	  national	  average.	  
	  
	  
	  
Data	  is	  sourced	  from	  Plunket	  via	  the	  Ministry	  of	  
Health	  and	  does	  not	  include	  data	  from	  
Arowhenua	  Whānau	  Services	  

	  
	  

Impact:	  Fewer	  young	  people	  take	  up	  tobacco	  
smoking.	  

Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  ‘never	  smokers’	  among	  Year	  10	  
students.	  

Comment	  
The	  fluctuation	  of	  results	  for	  this	  measure	  is	  due	  
to	  very	  small	  numbers	  for	  South	  Canterbury	  
included	  in	  the	  survey.	  	  Participation	  by	  local	  
schools	  is	  voluntary	  and	  there	  is	  the	  potential	  
that	  the	  same	  schools	  are	  not	  included	  each	  
year.	  
	  
	  
	  
ASH	  NZ	  Year	  10	  Survey	  
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STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  2:	  People	  stay	  well	  in	  their	  own	  homes	  and	  communities	  

Impact:	  People	  access	  urgent	  care	  when	  they	  
need	  it.	  

Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  the	  population	  presenting	  at	  ED	  
and	  number	  admitted.	  

Comment	  
The	  number	  of	  ED	  presentations	  for	  2014/15	  is	  
the	  highest	  recorded	  with	  a	  3.2%	  increase	  noted	  
on	  the	  previous	  year.	  	  A	  corresponding	  1.8%	  
reduction	  in	  acute	  admissions	  relates	  too	  much	  
of	  the	  increase	  in	  presentations	  being	  classified	  
as	  triage	  4.	  	  There	  has	  been	  a	  renewed	  focus	  on	  
inappropriate	  presentations	  to	  ED	  with	  re-‐
direction	  to	  primary	  care.	  	  Further	  analysis	  is	  
planned	  in	  2015/16	  on	  presentations	  to	  the	  ED	  
after	  6pm	  by	  domicile.	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  National	  Minimum	  Data	  Set	  

	  

	  

Impact:	  Fewer	  people	  are	  admitted	  to	  hospital	  
with	  conditions	  considered	  ‘avoidable’	  or	  
preventable.	  

Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
rate	  of	  avoidable	  hospital	  admissions	  per	  
100,000	  population	  (<75).	  

Comment	  
The	  result	  presented	  for	  2014/15	  is	  as	  at	  the	  end	  
of	  March	  2015	  and	  shows	  an	  improvement	  on	  
previous	  years.	  	  This	  is	  due	  to	  both	  effective	  
primary	  care	  management	  and	  the	  introduction	  
of	  initiatives	  such	  as	  the	  ‘Wrap	  Around	  Service’	  
supporting	  people	  to	  stay	  in	  their	  own	  home	  and	  
removing	  the	  need	  for	  a	  hospital	  admission.	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  form	  the	  Ministry	  of	  Health	  

	  
	  

	  

Impact:	  Children	  have	  improved	  oral	  health.	   Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  children	  caries-‐free	  at	  age	  5	  (no	  
holes	  or	  fillings).	  

Comment	  
Further	  improvement	  is	  noted	  for	  both	  Māori	  
and	  total	  populations	  in	  2014	  with	  the	  DHB	  
target	  for	  total	  population	  being	  met.	  	  This	  
improved	  performance	  has	  been	  aided	  through	  
increased	  referrals	  to	  the	  oral	  health	  promoter	  
who	  works	  with	  those	  ‘at	  risk’	  children	  and	  their	  
families	  to	  improve	  dental	  hygiene	  and	  nutrition.	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  Ministry	  of	  Health.	  
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STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  3:	  People	  with	  complex	  illness	  have	  improved	  health	  outcomes	  

Impact:	  People	  have	  shorter	  waits	  for	  
treatment.	  

Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  patients	  presenting	  in	  ED	  who	  are	  
admitted,	  discharged	  or	  transferred	  within	  six	  
hours.	  

Comment	  
The	  DHB	  continues	  to	  consistently	  meet	  this	  
national	  Health	  Target.	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  SCDHB	  

	  

	  

Impact:	  People	  have	  increased	  access	  to	  elective	  
services.	  

Impact	  Measures	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
time	  people	  wait	  from	  referral	  to	  First	  Specialist	  
Assessment	  (ESPI	  2).	  
The	  time	  people	  wait	  from	  commitment	  to	  treat	  
until	  treatment	  (ESPI	  5).	  

Comment	  
Elective	  Service	  Performance	  Indicator	  2	  relates	  
to	  the	  percentage	  of	  patients	  provided	  with	  a	  
First	  Specialist	  Appointment	  within	  4	  months	  of	  
referral.	  	  This	  timeframe	  was	  reduced	  from	  5	  to	  
4	  months	  for	  the	  2014/15	  year	  and	  was	  met.	  
Elective	  Service	  Performance	  Indicator	  5	  relates	  
to	  the	  percentage	  of	  patients	  given	  a	  
commitment	  to	  treatment	  within	  4	  months	  (also	  
reduce	  from	  the	  previous	  year	  timeframe	  of	  5	  
months).	  	  The	  DHB	  fell	  slightly	  short	  of	  this	  
target	  for	  2014/15.	  	  This	  relates	  to	  only	  three	  
patients	  not	  quite	  meeting	  the	  required	  
timeframe.	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  SCDHB	  
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Impact:	  People	  stay	  safe	  in	  hospital.	   Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
rate	  of	  SAC	  level	  1	  and	  2	  falls	  in	  South	  
Canterbury	  Hospitals.	  

Comment	  
The	  effect	  of	  the	  DHB’s	  Falls	  Prevention	  and	  
Management	  Programme	  continues	  to	  be	  
evident	  with	  only	  five	  serious	  falls	  recorded	  
during	  2014/15.	  	  This	  result	  includes	  the	  DHB’s	  
Aged	  Related	  Residential	  Care	  facility	  and	  
remains	  well	  within	  target	  of	  ≤nine.	  
	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  SCDHB	  

	  
	  

	  

STRATEGIC	  OUTCOME	  GOAL	  4:	  People	  experience	  optimal	  functional	  independence	  and	  quality	  of	  
life	  

Impact:	  Fewer	  people	  are	  admitted	  to	  hospital	  
as	  a	  result	  of	  a	  fall.	  

Impact	  Measure	  Medium	  Term	  (3-‐5	  years):	  The	  
percentage	  of	  the	  population	  (75+)	  admitted	  to	  
hospital	  as	  a	  result	  of	  a	  fall.	  

Comment	  
The	  DHB’S	  performance	  in	  this	  area	  has	  been	  
maintained	  with	  the	  rate	  reported	  for	  2014/15	  
well	  below	  both	  the	  South	  Island	  and	  NZ	  rate.	  	  
This	  is	  largely	  attributed	  to	  the	  effectiveness	  of	  
the	  South	  Canterbury	  Community	  Falls	  
Prevention	  Programme.	  
	  
	  
Data	  sourced	  from	  the	  South	  Island	  Alliance	  
Programme	  Office	  
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MEASURING	  OUR	  NON-‐FINANCIAL	  PERFORMANCE	  
	  
As	  part	  of	  evaluating	  our	  performance,	  we	  provide	  an	  annual	  forecast	  of	  the	  services	  we	  plan	  to	  deliver	  and	  
report	  actual	  delivery	  against	  that	  forecast	  at	  the	  end	  of	  each	  year.	  	  The	  following	  section	  presents	  our	  actual	  
performance	  against	  the	  forecast	  outputs	  presented	  in	  our	  Statement	  of	  Performance	  for	  2014	  –	  2015.	  
	  
Identifying	  a	  set	  of	  appropriate	  measures	  is	  difficult.	  	  We	  cannot	  not	  simply	  measure	  ‘volumes’	  as	  the	  number	  
of	  services	  delivered	  or	  the	  number	  of	  people	  who	  receive	  a	  service	  is	  often	  less	  important	  than	  whether	  ‘the	  
right	  person’	  or	   ‘enough’	  of	  the	  right	  people	  received	  the	  service,	  and	  whether	  the	  service	  was	  delivered	  ‘at	  
the	  right	  time’.	  
	  
The	  output	  measures	  chosen	  are	  those	  activities	  which	  reflect	  a	  reasonable	  picture	  of	  activity	  across	  the	  whole	  
of	  the	  South	  Canterbury	  health	  system	  and	  have	  the	  potential	  to	  make	  the	  greatest	  contribution	  to	  the	  health	  
and	  wellbeing	   of	   our	   population	   in	   the	   shorter	   term	   and	   to	   the	   health	   outcomes	  we	   are	   seeking	   over	   the	  
longer	  term.	  
	  
We	  have	  used	  a	  mix	  of	  measures	  of	  Quantity	   (V),	  Quality	   (Q),	  Coverage	  (C)	  and	  Timeliness	   (T)	  –	  all	  of	  which	  
help	   us	   to	   evaluate	   different	   aspects	   of	   our	   performance	   and	   against	   which	   we	   have	   set	   targets	   to	  
demonstrate	  the	  standard	  expected.	  	  Quantity	  measures	  demonstrate	  capacity	  and	  ‘how	  much’	  of	  a	  service	  we	  
are	   delivering.	   	   Quality	   measures	   demonstrate	   ‘how	   well’	   we	   are	   delivering	   the	   service.	   	   Coverage	  
demonstrates	  the	  scope	  and	  scale	  of	  services	  provided	  and	  Timeliness	  measures	  demonstrate	  where	  services	  
are	  delivered	  within	  recommended	  timeframes.	  	  	  
	  
We	  have	   set	   targets	   for	   each	   output	  measure	   to	   demonstrate	   the	   expected	   standard.	   	  Where	   available	  we	  
have	  included	  prior	  year’s	  baseline	  data	  to	  support	  evaluation	  of	  our	  performance	  over	  time	  as	  well	  as	  national	  
results	  for	  2014/15	  to	  give	  context	  in	  terms	  of	  what	  we	  are	  trying	  to	  achieve.	  	  
	  
In	   order	   to	   present	   a	   representative	   picture	   of	   performance,	   outputs	   have	   been	   grouped	   into	   four	   ‘output	  
classes’	  that	  are	  a	  logical	  fit	  with	  the	  stages	  of	  the	  continuum	  of	  care	  and	  are	  applicable	  to	  all	  DHBs:	  Prevention	  
Services,	   Early	   Detection	   and	   Management	   Services,	   Intensive	   Assessment	   and	   Treatment	   Services,	   and	  
Rehabilitation	  and	  Support	  Services.	  
	  
OUTPUT	  GROUPING	  SET	  AGAINST	  THE	  CONTINUUM	  OF	  CARE	  FOR	  OUR	  POPULATION	  

	  
	  
Access	   to	   a	   significant	   proportion	   of	   public	   health	   services	   e.g.	   laboratory	   tests,	   emergency	   care,	  maternity	  
services	   and	   palliative	   care	   is	   unrestricted	   or	   demand-‐driven.	   	   Estimated	   delivery	   volumes	   set	   for	   these	  
measures	  are	  simply	  a	  forecast	  or	  estimate	  of	  expected	  demand	  with	  actual	  use	  of	  these	  services	  included	  to	  
give	  the	  reader	  a	  picture	  of	  what	  is	  happening	  across	  our	  health	  system.	  
	  
Some	   data	   is	   collected	   on	   calendar	   rather	   than	   financial	   years	   and	   where	   this	   occurs	   is	   indicated	   as	   such.	  	  
Results	   are	   based	   on	   data	   available	   at	   the	   time	   of	   producing	   this	   report	   and	  may	   be	   subject	   to	   change	   as	  
additional	  coding	  and	  invoicing	  is	  completed.	  	  Any	  other	  irregularities	  have	  been	  footnoted.	  
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WHAT	  HAVE	  WE	  DELIVERED	  –	  PERFORMANCE	  RESULTS	  	  
South	  Canterbury	  District	  Health	  Board	  continues	  to	  perform	  well	  against	  a	  range	  of	  performance	  measures.	  
Health	   Targets	  were	  met	   for	   better	   help	   for	   smokers	   to	   quit,	   shorter	   stays	   in	   emergency	   departments	   and	  
improved	   access	   to	   elective	   services.	   	   Further	   progress	   was	   made	   against	   the	   target	   for	   more	   heart	   and	  
diabetes	  checks	  with	  the	  DHB	  just	  falling	  short	  of	  target.	   	  The	  target	  for	   increased	  immunisation	  was	  missed	  
with	  the	  DHB’s	  result	  sitting	  one	  percent	  below	  the	  national	  average	  and	  performance	  against	  the	  new	  Health	  
Target	  for	  faster	  cancer	  treatment	  fall	  below	  both	  target	  and	  the	  national	  average	  result.	  	  
	  
Where	   the	   targets	   set	  out	   in	   the	   following	   tables	  has	  been	  achieved	   this	  has	  been	   indicated	  with	  a	   √	   in	   the	  
status	   column.	   	   For	   those	  measures	  where	   target	   has	   not	   been	   achieved	   these	   results	   have	  been	   indicated	  
with	   an	   x	   and	   a	   comment	   explaining	   variance	   to	   target	   has	   been	   included	   as	   a	   footnote.	   	   Those	  measures	  
purely	  relating	  to	  estimated	  service	  delivery	  which	  are	  demand	  driven	  have	  been	  indicated	  with	  a	  ∞.	  
	  
OUTPUT	  CLASS	  -‐	  PREVENTION	  SERVICES	  
Preventative	  health	  services	  promote	  and	  protect	  the	  health	  of	  the	  whole	  population.	  	  These	  services	  include	  
education	   programmes	   and	   services	   to	   raise	   awareness	   of	   risk	   behaviours	   and	   healthy	   choices,	   the	   use	   of	  
legislation	   and	   policy	   to	   protect	   the	   public	   from	   toxic	   environmental	   risks	   and	   communicable	   diseases,	   and	  
individual	   health	   protection	   services	   such	   as	   immunisation	   and	   screening	   programmes	   that	   support	   early	  
intervention	  to	  modify	  lifestyles	  and	  maintain	  good	  health.	  
	  
By	   improving	  environments	  and	  raising	  awareness,	   these	  services	  support	  people	  to	  make	  healthier	  choices,	  
reducing	  the	  major	  risk	  factors	  that	  contribute	  to	  long-‐term	  conditions	  and	  delaying	  or	  reducing	  the	  impact	  of	  
these	  conditions.	  	  Services	  are	  often	  designed	  to	  disseminate	  consistent	  messages	  to	  large	  numbers	  of	  people	  
and	   can	   be	   cost-‐effective.	   	   High	   need	   and	   at-‐risk	   population	   groups	   are	   also	  more	   likely	   to	   engage	   in	   risky	  
behaviours	  and	   to	   live	   in	  environments	   less	   conducive	   to	  making	  healthier	   choices.	   	  Prevention	   services	  are	  
therefore	  also	  our	  foremost	  opportunity	  to	  target	  improvements	  in	  the	  health	  of	  high	  need	  populations	  and	  to	  
reduce	  inequalities	  in	  health	  status	  and	  health	  outcomes.	  
	  
Success	   is	   defined	   by	   positive	   changes	   in	   behaviours	   and	   high	   coverage	   levels,	  which	   signal	   engagement	   in	  
programmes	   and	   the	   effectiveness	   of	   positive	   health	  messaging	   and	   the	   quality	   of	   the	   support	   and	   advice	  
being	  provided.	   	   Successful	  provision	  of	   these	  services	  will	   reduce	   risk	   factors	   such	  as	   smoking	  and	   improve	  
positive	  behaviours	  such	  as	  breastfeeding,	  healthier	  diets	  and	  regular	  exercise	  –	  which	  will	  improve	  the	  overall	  
health	  and	  wellbeing	  of	  our	  population.	  
	  
The	  DHB	  met	   all	  Well	   Child/Tamariki	  Ora	   (WCTO)	  Quality	   Improvement	   Framework	   indicator	  breast	   feeding	  
targets	   for	   2014.	   Performance	   against	   the	   Health	   Target	   for	   ‘Better	   Help	   for	   Smokers	   to	   Quit’	   has	   been	  
sustained	  with	  targets	  met	  for	  both	  hospital	  and	  primary	  care	  settings	  at	  quarter	  four.	  	  Continued	  promotion	  
of	  the	  Green	  Prescription	  programme	  has	  seen	  an	  increase	  in	  referrals	  over	  the	  last	  year	  and	  work	  continues	  
between	  Sports	  Canterbury	  and	  Primary	  Care	  to	  increase	  these	  even	  further.	  	  The	  DHB	  continues	  to	  perform	  
well	  above	  the	  national	  benchmark	  score	  of	  70	  for	  its	  Family	  Violence	  Intervention	  Programme.	  
	  
Population	   screening	   results	   remain	   satisfactory	   with	   only	   cervical	   screening	   falling	   below	   target	   with	   the	  
result	  for	  Māori	  continuing	  to	  be	  negatively	  influenced	  by	  ethnicity	  data	  collection.	  	  This	  issue	  will	  be	  resolved	  
as	  women	  return	  for	  their	  next	  screen	  but	  it	  is	  expected	  that	  results	  will	  continue	  to	  be	  affected	  for	  the	  next	  
couple	  of	  years.	  
	  
The	  immunisation	  at	  eight	  months	  Health	  Target	  was	  met	  for	  two	  of	  the	  four	  quarters	  and	  can	  be	  negatively	  
impacted	  by	  families	  moving	   into	  the	  district.	   	  The	  DHB’s	  pneumonia	   immunisation	  programme	  continues	  to	  
be	  promoted	  with	  excellent	  uptake	  and	  as	   in	  previous	  years	   the	  access	   to	   the	   free	   flu	  vaccination	   for	   those	  
eligible	  has	  been	  extended	  to	  September	  to	  increase	  coverage.	  	  Promotion	  of	  the	  HPV	  programme	  continues.	  
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OUTPUT	  MEASURES	  

Health	  Promotion	  and	  Education	  
Services	  
These	  services	  inform	  people	  about	  
risks	  and	  support	  them	  to	  be	  
healthy.	  Success	  is	  measured	  by	  
greater	  awareness	  and	  
engagement,	  reinforced	  by	  
programmes	  that	  support	  people	  to	  
maintain	  wellness,	  change	  personal	  
behaviours	  and	  make	  healthier	  
choices.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  babies	  breast-‐fed	  
(exclusive	  and	  full)	  in	  the	  district	  at	  
6	  weeks	  of	  age	  

C,Q1	   70%	   70%	   69%	  (pub.	  
March	  
2015)	  

≥73%	  
(WCTO	  
target	  
Dec	  2014	  
68%)	  

74%	  (pub.	  
March	  
2015)	  

x	  

Percentage	  of	  babies	  breast-‐fed	  
(exclusive	  and	  full)	  in	  the	  district	  at	  
3	  months	  of	  age	  

C,Q1	   56%	   56%	   57%	  (pub	  
March	  
2015)	  

≥58%	  
(WCTO	  
target	  
Dec	  2014	  
54%)	  

55%	  (pub.	  
March	  
2015)	  

x	  

Percentage	  of	  babies	  breast-‐fed	  
(exclusive	  and	  full)	  in	  the	  district	  at	  
6	  months	  of	  age	  

C,Q1	   25%	   27%	   63%	  (pub	  
March	  
2015)	  

≥28%	  
(WCTO	  
target	  
Dec	  2014	  
59%)	  

66%	  (pub.	  
March	  
2015)	  

√	  

No.	  of	  people	  in	  South	  Canterbury	  
accessing	  smoking	  cessation	  
programmes	  

V2	   873	   548	   574	   ≥500	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  who	  receive	  
brief	  invention	  to	  quit	  smoking	  in	  
the	  hospital	  setting	  

C3	   98.8%	  
(Q4)	  

98%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

99.2%	  
(Q4)	  

98.5%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

98.9%	  
(Q4)	  

99%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

≥95%	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  who	  receive	  
brief	  invention	  to	  quit	  smoking	  in	  
the	  primary	  care	  setting	  

C3	   76%	  
(Q4)	  

64%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

97.3%	  
(Q4)	  

89%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

91.6%	  
(Q4)	  

87%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

≥90%	   90.5%	  
(Q4)	  

√	  

No.	  of	  Green	  Prescription	  referrals	   V4	   385	   414	   427	   ≥520	   -‐	   x	  
Percentage	  of	  education	  settings	  
engaged	  with	  WAVE	  

C	   99%	   99.1%	   99.1%	   ≥99%	   -‐	   √	  

Family	  Violence	  Intervention	  
Programme	  Evaluation	  Audit	  score	  
of	  hospital	  responsiveness	  to	  child	  
abuse	  above	  the	  national	  
benchmark	  score	  of	  70	  

Q	   96	   96	   94	   ≥91	   -‐	   √	  

Family	  Violence	  Intervention	  
Programme	  Evaluation	  Audit	  score	  
of	  hospital	  responsiveness	  to	  
partner	  abuse	  above	  the	  national	  
benchmark	  score	  of	  70	  

Q5	   92	   92	   90	   ≥92	   -‐	   x	  

1.	  Results	  for	  2014/15	  have	  been	  taken	  from	  the	  WCTO	  Quality	  Improvement	  Framework	  Indicator	  results	  with	  targets	  set	  for	  this	  national	  
programme	  different	  to	  those	  published	  in	  the	  SCDHB	  Annual	  Plan.	  	  These	  national	  targets	  have	  all	  been	  met.	  	  Breast	  feeding	  rates	  at	  six	  
months	  now	  includes	  partial	  as	  well	  as	  exclusive	  and	  full.	  	  SCDHB	  continues	  to	  have	  a	  Breast	  Feeding	  Plan	  which	  includes	  a	  number	  of	  
breast	  feeding	  promotional	  and	  support	  activities.	  
2.	  These	  volumes	  relate	  to	  DHB	  funded	  programmes	  and	  do	  not	  include	  those	  referred	  to	  programmes	  such	  as	  Quitline.	  
3.	  Refer	  to	  Health	  Target	  section	  of	  the	  Annual	  Report	  for	  quarterly	  results	  and	  trendline.	  
4.	  Explore	  with	  Sport	  Canterbury	  and	  implement	  the	  integration	  of	  the	  pre-‐long-‐term	  condition	  programme	  with	  Green	  Prescription	  which	  
will	  increase	  referrals.	  	  
5.	  Whilst	  the	  result	  for	  2014/15	  is	  slightly	  below	  target	  it	  remains	  well	  above	  the	  national	  target	  of	  ‘70’.	  
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Population	  Based	  Screening	  
These	  services	  are	  mostly	  
funded	  and	  provided	  through	  
the	  National	  Screening	  Unit	  
and	  help	  identify	  people	  at	  risk	  
of	  illness	  earlier.	  	  They	  include	  
breast	  and	  cervical	  screening.	  	  
The	  DHB’s	  role	  is	  to	  encourage	  
uptake,	  as	  indicated	  by	  high	  
coverage	  rates.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  enrolled	  women	  
aged	  25	  –	  69	  years	  who	  have	  
had	  a	  cervical	  screen	  in	  the	  last	  
three	  years	  

T1	   76.1%	   78.7%	   75.8%	   ≥80%	   76.5%	   x	  

Percentage	  of	  Māori	  enrolled	  
women	  aged	  20	  –	  69	  years	  
who	  have	  had	  a	  cervical	  screen	  
in	  the	  last	  three	  years	  

T1	   69.5%	   50.7%	   48.8%	  
	  

≥80%	   -‐	   x	  

Percentage	  of	  enrolled	  women	  
aged	  45	  –	  69	  years	  who	  have	  
had	  breast	  screening	  
mammography	  as	  part	  of	  the	  
national	  mammography	  
screening	  programme	  in	  the	  
last	  two	  years	  

T2	   84.3%	   82.9%	   79.1%	   ≥70%	   71.9%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  Māori	  enrolled	  
women	  aged	  45	  –	  69	  years	  
who	  have	  had	  breast	  screening	  
mammography	  as	  part	  of	  the	  
national	  mammography	  
screening	  programme	  in	  the	  
last	  two	  years	  

T2	   77.6%	   82.9%	   73.6%	   ≥70%	   64.2%	   √	  

No.	  of	  B4	  School	  Checks	  
completed	  

V	   816	   803	   733	   ≥613	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  eligible	  
population	  provided	  with	  a	  B4	  
School	  Check	  

C3	   100%	   112%	   108%	   ≥90%	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  of	  ‘high	  needs’	  B4	  School	  
Checks	  completed	  

V	   87	   82	   76	   ≥62	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  eligible	  ‘high	  
needs’	  population	  provided	  
with	  a	  B4	  School	  Check	  

C3	   100%	   119%	   110%	   ≥90%	   -‐	   √	  

1.	  Whilst	  the	  target	  has	  not	  been	  met	  for	  this	  performance	  measure	  it	  is	  comparable	  with	  previous	  years	  and	  promotion	  is	  ongoing.	  	  The	  
result	  for	  Māori	  for	  cervical	  screening	  has	  been	  negatively	  influenced	  by	  ethnicity	  data	  capture	  on	  the	  National	  Cervical	  Screening	  
Programme	  Register.	  	  This	  issue	  continues	  to	  be	  resolved	  as	  women	  return	  for	  their	  next	  screening	  with	  updated	  ethnicity	  data.	  
2.	  The	  age	  band	  for	  2014/15’s	  screening	  result	  is	  50	  –	  69	  years.	  	  The	  Breast	  Screening	  Aotearoa	  (BSA)	  screening	  programme	  is	  for	  women	  
aged	  45	  –	  69	  years	  however	  their	  target	  is	  to	  screen	  70	  percent	  of	  eligible	  women	  aged	  50	  –	  69	  every	  two	  years.	  	  BSA	  does	  not	  have	  a	  
target	  for	  women	  aged	  45	  –	  49	  years	  because	  there	  is	  less	  evidence	  of	  the	  benefits	  of	  this	  age	  group’s	  participation	  in	  a	  population	  health	  
breast	  screening	  programme.	  
3.	  The	  result	  for	  2014/15	  exceeds	  100%	  because	  the	  target	  set	  (i.e.90%)	  is	  below	  100%	  but	  more	  children	  over	  and	  above	  those	  required	  to	  
meet	  the	  target	  of	  90%	  have	  been	  provided	  with	  a	  B4	  School	  Check	  resulting	  in	  a	  performance	  in	  excess	  of	  100%.	  
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Immunisation	  
These	  services	  reduce	  the	  
transmission	  and	  impact	  of	  
vaccine-‐preventable	  diseases	  
including	  unnecessary	  
hospitalisations.	  	  The	  DHB	  
works	  with	  primary	  care	  and	  
allied	  health	  professionals	  to	  
improve	  the	  provision	  of	  
immunisations	  across	  all	  age	  
groups	  both	  routinely	  and	  in	  
response	  to	  specific	  risk.	  	  A	  
high	  coverage	  rate	  is	  indicative	  
of	  a	  well-‐coordinated,	  
successful	  service.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  8	  months	  old	  
fully	  immunised	  on	  time	  

T,C1	   88%	  
(Q4)	  

92%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

92%	  
(Q4)	  

94%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

91.9%	  
(Q4)	  

94.5%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

≥95%	   92.9%	  
(Q4)	  

x	  

Percentage	  of	  2	  years	  old	  fully	  
immunised	  on	  time.	  	  Ref	  PP21.	  

T,C	   94%	   97%	   95.3%	   ≥95%	   93.2%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  the	  eligible	  
population	  receiving	  the	  flu	  
vaccination	  

C2	   68%	   68.7%	   67.3%	   ≥70%	   -‐	   x	  

No.	  ≥	  65	  year	  olds	  immunised	  
for	  pneumonia	  

C	   391	   223	   517	   ≥180	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  of	  HPV	  vaccinations	  
completed	  for	  consenting	  
adolescents	  through	  the	  school	  
based	  programme	  

V	   130	  
(2012)	  

171	  
(2013)	  

122	  
(2014)	  

115	  
(2014)	  

-‐	   √	  

1.	  Refer	  to	  Health	  Target	  section	  of	  the	  Annual	  Report	  for	  quarterly	  results	  and	  trendline.	  	  Whilst	  the	  target	  was	  met	  for	  the	  first	  two	  
quarters	  of	  the	  year	  the	  year	  end	  result	  fell	  short.	  	  This	  result	  has	  been	  impacted	  by	  a	  number	  of	  variables	  including	  families	  moving	  into	  
the	  area	  and	  delayed	  immunisation.	  

2.	  The	  timeframe	  for	  this	  programme	  has	  been	  extended	  until	  end	  of	  August	  2015	  which	  is	  expected	  to	  increase	  coverage.	  	  	  This	  was	  due	  to	  
the	  duration	  of	  the	  flu	  season	  and	  on	  advice	  from	  the	  Ministry	  of	  Health..	  
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OUTPUT	  CLASS	  -‐	  EARLY	  DETECTION	  &	  MANAGEMENT	  
Early	   detection	   and	   management	   services	   maintain,	   improve	   and	   restore	   people’s	   health	   by	   ensuring	   that	  
people	   at	   risk	   or	  with	   disease	   onset	   are	   recognised	   early,	   their	   need	   is	   identified,	   long-‐term	   conditions	   are	  
managed	  more	  effectively	  and	  services	  are	  coordinated	  -‐	  particularly	  where	  people	  have	  multiple	  conditions	  
requiring	  ongoing	  interventions	  or	  support.	  
	  
These	   services	   are	   by	   nature	   more	   generalist,	   usually	   accessible	   from	  multiple	   providers	   and	   a	   number	   of	  
different	   locations.	   	   They	   include	   general	   practice,	   primary	   and	   community	   services,	   personal	   and	   mental	  
health	   services,	   Māori	   and	   Pacific	   health	   services,	   pharmacy	   services,	   community	   radiology	   and	   diagnostic	  
services	  and	  child	  oral	  health	  services.	  
	  
By	  promoting	  regular	  engagement	  with	  health	  services,	  we	  support	  people	  to	  maintain	  good	  health	  through	  
earlier	  diagnosis	   and	   treatment,	  which	  provides	  an	  opportunity	   to	   intervene	   in	   less	   invasive	  and	  more	   cost-‐
effective	  ways	  associated	  with	  better	  long-‐term	  outcomes.	  	  	  
	  
Some	   of	   these	   services	   are	   demand-‐driven,	   such	   as	   pharmaceuticals	   and	   laboratory	   tests,	   and	   services	   are	  
provided	  with	  a	  mix	  of	  public	  and	  private	  funding	  and	  may	  include	  co-‐payments	  for	  general	  practice	  services	  
and	  pharmaceuticals.	  
	  
Success	  is	  defined	  by	  high	  coverage	  and	  utilisation	  of	  services,	  signalling	  engagement	  with	  and	  access	  to	  health	  
services.	  	  Increases	  in	  access	  to	  diagnostics	  and	  agreed	  referral	  pathways	  and	  reductions	  in	  avoidable	  hospital	  
admissions	  also	  reflect	  improvement.	  
	  
Utilisation	  of	  Care	  Plus	  for	  those	  eligible	  continues	  to	  improve.	  	  Steady	  progress	  on	  the	  development	  of	  Aoraki	  
Health	  Pathways	   is	  also	  evident.	   	  Satisfactory	  results	  are	  also	  noted	  for	  newborn	  GP	  enrolment	  and	  the	  ASH	  
admission	  rate.	  
	  
Access	  to	  programmes	  supporting	  self	  management	  of	  long-‐term	  conditions	  met	  planned	  levels	  and	  progress	  
continues	   to	   be	   made	   against	   the	   Health	   Target	   of	   ‘More	   Heart	   and	   Diabetes	   Checks’	   with	   a	   further	  
improvement	  of	  6.5%	  by	  quarter	  four.	  
	  
Results	   for	  oral	  health	  remain	  variable	  and	  this	   remains	  a	   focus	   for	   the	  DHB	  with	  action	  detailed	   in	  the	  foot	  
notes	   of	   this	   section.	   	   Performance	   in	   the	   area	   of	   medicines	   reconciliation	   remains	   poor,	   however	   it	   is	  
expected	  that	  the	  regionally	  planned	  electronic	  solution	  will	  go	  some	  way	  to	  addressing	  this.	  
	  
Performance	  against	  waiting	  times	  for	  MRI,	  CT	  and	  urgent	  diagnostic	  colonoscopies	  has	  been	  sustained	  with	  
further	   improvement	   noted	   for	   non-‐urgent	   diagnostic	   colonoscopies	   on	   the	   previous	   year.	   	   Demand	   for	  
diagnostic	   colonoscopies	   has	   impacted	   on	   the	   DHB’s	   capacity	   in	   meeting	   the	   target	   for	   surveillance	  
colonoscopies	  and	  work	  continues	  in	  this	  area.	  
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Primary	  Health	  Care	  
These	  services	  are	  offered	  in	  
local	  community	  settings	  by	  a	  
primary	  care	  team	  including	  
general	  practitioners	  (GPs),	  
registered	  nurses,	  nurse	  
practitioners	  and	  other	  
primary	  healthcare	  
professionals,	  aimed	  at	  
improving,	  maintaining	  or	  
restoring	  people’s	  health.	  	  High	  
levels	  of	  enrolment	  with	  
general	  practice	  are	  indicative	  
of	  engagement,	  accessibility	  
and	  responsiveness	  of	  primary	  
care	  services.	   N
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No.	  people	  in	  the	  district	  
enrolled	  with	  a	  Primary	  Care	  
Provider	  

V,C	   56,272	   56,807	   57,142	   ≥56,000	   -‐	   ∞	  

Percentage	  of	  eligible	  people	  
enrolled	  in	  the	  Care	  Plus	  
Programme	  

C	   81.46%	   84%	   86%	   ≥82%	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  Aoraki	  HealthPathways	  in	  
place	  

Q	   265	   391	   516	   500	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  newborns	  
enrolled	  with	  a	  GP	  within	  three	  
months	  of	  birth	  

T	   New	   100%	   100%	   88%	  (by	  
Dec	  2014)	  

-‐	   √	  

Avoidable	  Hospital	  Admission	  
(ASH)	  0	  –	  74	  years	  (Total)	  rate.	  	  
Refer	  SI1.	  

Q	   97%	   100%	   93%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

102%	   100%	   √	  
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Long	  Term	  Conditions	  
Programme	  
These	  services	  are	  targeted	  at	  
people	  with	  high	  need	  due	  to	  
long-‐term	  conditions	  and	  aim	  
to	  reduce	  deterioration,	  crises	  
and	  complications.	  	  Success	  is	  
demonstrated	  through	  
identification	  of	  need,	  regular	  
monitoring	  and	  outcomes	  that	  
demonstrate	  good	  conditions	  
management.	  	  A	  focus	  on	  early	  
intervention,	  self-‐management	  
strategies	  and	  additional	  
services	  available	  in	  the	  
community	  will	  help	  to	  reduce	  
the	  negative	  impact	  of	  long-‐
term	  conditions	  and	  the	  need	  
for	  hospital	  admission.	   N
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%	  of	  patients	  who	  have	  
completed	  the	  Multi-‐condition	  
Rehabilitation	  Programme	  

V	   New	   92%	   76%	   ≥70%	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  of	  patients	  enrolled	  in	  the	  
Diabetes	  Encounter	  
Programme	  

V1	   New	   188	   162	   ≥150	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  the	  eligible	  
population	  who	  have	  had	  their	  
cardiovascular	  risk	  checked	  in	  
the	  last	  5	  years	  

C2	   64.4%	  
(Q4)	  

57%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

81.2%	  
(Q4)	  

75%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

87.7%	  
(Q4)	  

86%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

≥90%	   89%	  
(Q4)	  

x	  

1. In	  2013/14	  this	  programme	  had	  two	  related	  measures.	   	  The	  components	  of	  the	  programme	  have	  now	  been	  combined	  into	  a	  
single	  programme	  format.

	  

2. Refer	   to	   Health	   Target	   section	   of	   the	   Annual	   Report	   for	   quarterly	   results	   and	   trendline.	   	   Whilst	   the	   target	   was	   not	   met,	  
incremental	   gain	   has	   been	  made	   during	   the	   year.	   	   Initiatives	   introduced	   to	   improved	   performance	   during	   2014/15	   include	  
benchmarking	  individual	  practice	  performance	  amongst	  peers	  and	  CEO	  engagement	  with	  specific	  practices	  over	  performance.	  	  
Practices	  also	  continue	  to	  utilise	  available	  tools	  such	  as	  dashboards	  and	  Dr	  Info	  to	  identify	  patients	  due	  for	  a	  CVD	  check.
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Oral	  Health	  
These	  services	  are	  provided	  by	  registered	  
oral	  health	  professionals	  to	  help	  people	  
maintain	  healthy	  teeth	  and	  gums.	  	  High	  
enrolment	  indicates	  engagement,	  while	  
timely	  examination	  and	  treatment	  
indicates	  a	  well	  functioning,	  efficient	  
service.	  	  Results	  are	  presented	  by	  
calendar	  year	  inline	  with	  the	  school	  year.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  children	  under	  five	  years	  
enrolled	  in	  DHB	  funded	  dental	  services.	  	  
Refer	  PP13.	  

C1	   76.7%	   70.9%	   69.8%	   ≥83%	   -‐	   x	  

Percentage	  of	  adolescents	  accessing	  DHB	  
funded	  oral	  health	  services.	  	  Refer	  PP12.	  

C2	   88.6%	   88.7%	   86%	   ≥85%	   67.6%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  children	  caries	  free	  at	  five	  
years	  of	  age.	  	  Refer	  PP11.	  

C	   60.18%	   61%	   63%	   ≥62%	   	   √	  

Oral	  Health	  Decayed,	  Missing	  and	  Filled	  
Teeth	  score	  at	  year	  eight.	  	  Refer	  PP10.	  

C	   1.2	   1.08	   1.07	   ≤1.1	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  enrolled	  preschool	  and	  
primary	  school	  children	  overdue	  for	  their	  
scheduled	  examination.	  	  Refer	  PP13	  

T3	   9%	   10%	   13%	   ≤10%	   -‐	   x	  

1.	  
To	  date	  most	  children	  have	  been	  enrolled	  just	  after	  their	  first	  birthday	  (with	  most	  having	  their	  first	  visit	  at	  two	  years	  old).	  Scoping	  of	  

enrolment	  shortly	  after	  birth	  is	  currently	  being	  carried	  out.	  
2.	  
This	  target	  was	  changed	  by	  the	  MOH	  in	  2014	  to	  85%	  which	  is	  lower	  than	  the	  91%	  published	  in	  the	  Annual	  Plan.	   	  The	  level	  of	  access	  by	  

adolescents	   in	   South	   Canterbury	   is	   the	   highest	   in	   the	   country.	   A	   reminder	   system	   for	   families	   whose	   teenagers	   do	   not	   appear	   to	   be	  
accessing	  services	  is	  in	  development.	  
3.	  
A	  formaldehyde	  contamination	  problem	  with	  mobile	  dental	  units	  adversely	  affected	  the	  delivery	  of	  services	  in	  2014.	  The	  problem	  has	  

been	  rectified	  and	  progress	  is	  now	  being	  made	  towards	  the	  target.	  
	  

Pharmacy	  
As	  Long	  Term	  Conditions	  (LTC)	  become	  
prevalent,	  demand	  for	  pharmaceuticals	  
will	  likely	  increase.	  	  The	  LTC	  service	  has	  
been	  introduced	  to	  provide	  a	  greater	  
hands	  on	  role	  of	  community	  patient’s	  
pharmaceutical	  management.	  	  To	  
improve	  service	  quality	  in	  the	  hospital	  
setting	  we	  have	  also	  introduced	  
medicines	  interventions	  monitoring	  along	  
with	  medicines	  reconciliation	  to	  reduce	  
the	  number	  of	  New	  Zealanders	  harmed	  
each	  year	  by	  medication	  errors	  in	  our	  
hospital.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  medicines	  reconciliations	  
completed	  

Q1	   New	   27.2%	  
(Oct	  
2013	  –	  
June	  
2014)	  

10.7%	   40%	   -‐	   x	  

1.	  
Performance	   in	   this	   area	   remains	   poor.	   	   A	   regional	   electronic	   solution	   is	   planned	   as	   part	   of	   the	   South	   Island	   Alliance	   e-‐Medicine	  

Programme.	  
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Community	   Referred	   Tests	   &	  
Diagnostic	  Services	  
These	  are	  services	  to	  which	  a	  
health	  professional	  may	  refer	  
a	  person	  to	  help	  diagnose	  a	  
health	  condition,	  or	  as	  part	  of	  
treatment.	  	  They	  are	  provided	  
by	  personnel	  such	  as	  
laboratory	  technicians,	  and	  
radiographers.	  	  To	  improve	  
performance,	  we	  will	  target	  
improved	  primary	  care	  access	  
to	  diagnostics	  without	  the	  
need	  for	  a	  hospital	  
appointment	  to	  improve	  
clinical	  referral	  processes	  and	  
decision	  making.	  Community	  
referred	  laboratory	  tests	  are	  
demand	  driven.	   N
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No.	  community	  referred	  
laboratory	  tests	  

V	   252,873	   282,429	   286,241	   Est.	  
245,000	  

-‐	   ∞	  

No.	  community	  referred	  
radiology	  examinations	  

V	   10,067	   10,564	   10,455	   Est.	  
10,500	  

-‐	   ∞	  

Percentage	  of	  accepted	  
referrals	  for	  a	  MRI	  scan	  
receive	  their	  scan	  within	  six	  
weeks.	  Refer	  PP29.	  

T	   84%	   99.4%	   90.2%	   80%	   54.3%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  accepted	  
referrals	  for	  a	  CT	  scan	  receive	  
their	  scan	  within	  six	  weeks.	  	  
Refer	  PP29.	  

T	   87%	   99.3%	   92%	   90%	   85%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  
accepted	  for	  an	  urgent	  
diagnostic	  colonoscopy	  who	  
receive	  their	  procedure	  within	  
two	  weeks.	  	  Refer	  PP29.	  

T	   New	   73%	   87.5%	   75%	   74.8%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  
accepted	  for	  a	  diagnostic	  
colonoscopy	  who	  receive	  their	  
procedure	  within	  six	  weeks.	  	  
Refer	  PP29.	  

T1	   New	   31.9%	   52.4%	   60%	   54.6%	   x	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  waiting	  
for	  a	  surveillance	  colonoscopy	  
will	  wait	  no	  longer	  than	  12	  
weeks	  beyond	  the	  planned	  
date.	  	  Refer	  PP29.	  

T2	   New	   New	   35.8%	   60%	   55.8%	   x	  

1.	  Whilst	  the	  target	  for	  non-‐urgent	  diagnostic	  colonoscopies	  was	  not	  met	  for	  2014/15	  there	  is	  a	  significant	  improvement	  on	  the	  previous	  
year’s	  result	  (improvement	  20.5%).	  	  Work	  has	  been	  completed	  to	  clinically	  and	  administratively	  validate	  waiting	  lists	  and	  a	  single	  waiting	  
list	  has	  now	  been	  created.	  	  Further	  improvement	  is	  expected	  in	  2015/16.	  
2.	  With	  the	  high	  demand	  for	  diagnostic	  colonoscopies	  during	  2014/15	  the	  capacity	  for	  surveillance	  colonoscopies	  was	  reduced.	  Incremental	  
improvement	  was	  noted	  during	  2014/15	  and	  is	  expected	  to	  continue	  with	  more	  consistent	  prioritisation	  practises.	  
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OUTPUT	  CLASS	  -‐	  INTENSIVE	  ASSESSMENT	  AND	  TREATMENT	  SERVICES	  
	  
Intensive	   assessment	   and	   treatment	   services	   are	  usually	   complex	   services	  provided	  by	   specialists	   and	  other	  
health	   care	   professionals	   working	   closely	   together.	   	   These	   services	   are	   therefore	   usually	   (but	   not	   always)	  
provided	   in	   hospital	   settings,	   which	   enable	   the	   co-‐location	   of	   clinical	   expertise	   and	   specialist	   equipment.	  	  
These	  services	   include	  ambulatory	  services,	   inpatient	  and	  outpatient	  services	  and	  emergency	  or	  urgent	  care	  
services.	  
	  
We	  provide	  an	  extensive	  range	  of	   intensive	  treatment	  and	  complex	  specialist	  services	  to	  our	  population	  and	  
we	  also	  fund	  some	  intensive	  assessment	  and	  treatment	  services	  for	  our	  population	  that	  are	  provided	  by	  other	  
DHBs.	  	  A	  proportion	  of	  these	  services	  are	  driven	  by	  demand	  which	  we	  must	  meet,	  such	  as	  acute	  and	  maternity	  
services.	   	  However,	  others	  are	  planned	   services	   for	  which	  provision	  and	  access	  are	  determined	  by	   capacity,	  
clinical	  triage,	  national	  service	  coverage	  agreements	  and	  treatment	  thresholds.	  
	  
Equitable,	   timely	  access	   to	   intensive	  assessment	  and	   treatment	  can	  significantly	   improve	  people’s	  quality	  of	  
life	  either	  through	  early	  intervention	  or	  through	  corrective	  action.	  	  Responsive	  services	  and	  timely	  treatment	  
support	   improvements	   across	   the	   whole	   system	   and	   give	   people	   confidence	   that	   complex	   intervention	   is	  
available	  when	  needed.	  	  	  
	  
As	   an	   owner	   and	   provider	   of	   these	   services,	   we	   are	   also	   concerned	   with	   the	   quality	   of	   the	   services	   being	  
provided.	  	  Quality	  improvement	  in	  service	  delivery,	  systems	  and	  processes	  improve	  patient	  safety,	  reduce	  the	  
number	  of	  events	  causing	  injury	  or	  harm	  and	  provide	  improved	  outcomes	  for	  people	  in	  our	  services.	  	  Adverse	  
events	   and	   delays	   in	   treatment,	   as	   well	   as	   causing	   harm	   to	   patients,	   drive	   unnecessary	   costs	   and	   redirect	  
resources	  away	  from	  other	  services.	  	  	  
	  
Success	   is	   defined	   by	   a	   reduction	   in	   acute	   demand,	   increased	   access	   to	   services	   and	   timely	   treatment	   and	  
increased	  access	  to	  less	  complex	  care	  in	  the	  community	  setting.	  	  	  
	  
Performance	   against	   the	   Health	   Target	   for	   ‘Shorter	   Stays	   in	   Emergency	   Departments’	   was	   sustained	  
throughout	   2014/15	   with	   presentations	   and	   discharge	   volumes	   comparable	   to	   previous	   years.	   	   Results	   for	  
acute	  length	  of	  stay	  and	  unplanned	  readmissions	  were	  close	  to	  or	  within	  target.	   	  Whilst	  all	  patients	  received	  
their	  radiation	  or	  chemotherapy	  within	  the	  target	  timeframe,	  performance	  against	  the	  new	  Health	  Target	  for	  
‘Faster	  Cancer	  Treatment’	  which	   replaced	   this	  measure	   fell	   short	   and	  was	  negatively	   impacted	  by	   the	   small	  
numbers	  meeting	  the	  reporting	  threshold.	  	  The	  new	  target	  of	  85%	  of	  patients	  referred	  with	  a	  high	  suspicion	  of	  
cancer	  wait	  62	  days	  or	   less	  to	  receive	  their	  first	  treatment	  reflects	  the	  National	  Programme	  of	  Cancer	  Faster	  
Cancer	  Treatment	   (FCT)	   initiative	  developed	  to	  ensure	  timely	  access	   to	  diagnosis	  and	  treatment	   for	  patients	  
with	  a	  high	   suspicion	  of	   cancer.	   	   Targets	   for	   all	   quality	  measures	   including	   the	  Quality	   Safety	  Markers	  were	  
achieved	  with	   the	  exception	  of	   complaint	  management	  which	   remains	  a	   focus	   for	   the	  DHB.Elective	   services	  
volumes	   were	   met	   by	   the	   DHB.	   	   Secondary	   services	   targets	   for	   non-‐contact	   medical	   First	   Specialist	  
Appointments	  (FSAs)	  and	  elective	  theatre	  utilisation	  did	  not	  meet	  target.	  	  The	  result	  for	  medical	  non-‐contact	  
FSAs	  was	   comparable	   to	   the	   previous	   year	   but	   failed	   to	  meet	   the	   projected	   increased	   target	   due	   to	   use	   of	  
physician	  locums.	  	  Elective	  theatre	  utilisation	  remains	  a	  focus	  for	  the	  surgical	  group.	  
	  
The	  number	  of	  births	   in	   the	  maternity	  unit	  was	  down	  on	  previous	   years	  but	   remained	  above	   the	  projected	  
level.	   	   Close	  monitoring	   of	   the	  DHB’s	   caesarean	   rate	   continues	   as	   this	   result	   is	   comparable	   to	   the	   previous	  
year.	  	  The	  DHB	  continues	  to	  maintain	  its	  Baby	  Friendly	  Hospital	  Initiative	  accreditation	  status.	  
	  
A	   further	   reduction	   in	  ATR	   service	  outpatient	  and	  domiciliary	   volumes	   is	  noted	   in	  2014/15	  with	   results	  well	  
below	  estimated	  delivery.	   	  This	  reflects	  a	  change	  of	  care	  delivery	   in	  the	  community	  and	   improvement	   in	  the	  
integrity	  of	  data	  collection.	  
	  
Access	  and	  waiting	  time	  targets	  in	  specialist	  mental	  health	  services	  continue	  to	  be	  met.	  
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Acute	  Services	  
These	  are	  medical	  or	  surgical	  services	  for	  
illnesses	  that	  have	  an	  abrupt	  onset	  or	  
progress	  rapidly	  creating	  an	  urgent	  need	  for	  
care.	  	  For	  more	  complex	  acute	  conditions,	  
hospital	  based	  services	  include	  emergency	  
services,	  acute	  medical	  and	  surgical	  services	  
and	  intensive	  care	  services.	  	  Productivity	  
measures	  such	  as	  length	  of	  stay	  are	  
balanced	  with	  outcome	  measures	  such	  as	  
readmission	  rates	  to	  indicate	  the	  quality	  of	  
service	  provision.	   N
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No.	  of	  patients	  seen	  at	  ED	  that	  are	  not	  
admitted	  

V	   12,821	   12,481	   12,894	   Est	  ≤.	  
10,705	  

-‐	   ∞	  

Percentage	  of	  patients	  discharged	  or	  
transferred	  from	  ED	  within	  6	  hours	  

T1	   96.4%	  
(Q4)	  
96.5%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

96.2%	  
(Q4)	  
96.5%	  
(Full	  
Year)	  

97.1%	  (Q4)	  
96%	  
(Full	  Year)	  

≥95%	   95%	  (Q4)	   √	  

No.	  of	  acute	  medical/surgical	  patients	  
discharged	  from	  Timaru	  Hospital	  

V	   6,527	   6,637	   6,625	   Est	  ≤	  
6,200	  

-‐	   ∞	  

Standardised	  length	  of	  stay	  for	  acute	  
patients.	  	  Refer	  OS3.	  

T	   4.73	   4.18	  
(March	  
2014)	  

4.03	  (March	  
2015)	  

≤4.32	   3.89	  
(March	  2015)	  

√	  

Standardised	  readmission	  rate.	  	  Refer	  OS8.	   Q2	   10.37%	   7.2%	   7.3%	  
(March	  2015)	  

≤7.1%	   7.9%	  
(March	  2015)	  

x	  

Percentage	  of	  patients	  requiring	  radiation	  or	  
chemotherapy	  who	  receive	  this	  treatment	  
within	  four	  weeks	  

T	   100%	   100%	   100%	   100%	   100%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  patients	  referred	  with	  a	  high	  
suspicion	  of	  cancer	  wait	  62	  days	  or	  less	  to	  
receive	  their	  first	  treatment	  (or	  other	  
management)	  by	  July	  2016	  

T3	   New	   New	   62.5%	  (Q4)	   85%	   67.5%	  (Q4)	   x	  

Percentage	  of	  older	  patients	  assessed	  for	  
the	  risk	  of	  falling	  

Q4	   96%	  
(Dec	  
2013)	  

-‐	   99%	  
(March	  2015)	  

90%	   90%	  
(March	  2015)	  

√	  

Percentage	  of	  older	  patients	  assessed	  as	  at	  
risk	  of	  falling	  who	  received	  an	  individualised	  
care	  plan	  that	  addressed	  these	  risks	  

Q4	   93%	  
(Dec	  
2013)	  

-‐	   94%	  (March	  
2015)	  

90%	   -‐	   √	  

Number	  of	  falls	  in	  the	  hospital	  categorised	  
as	  a	  SAC	  1	  or	  2	  

Q4	   16	   3	   5	   ≤9	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  complaints	  responded	  to	  
within	  23	  working	  days	  

Q5	   65%	   75%	   79%	   90%	   -‐	   x	  

Percentage	  of	  compliant	  moments	  of	  hand	  
hygiene	  

Q4	   72%	  
(Dec	  
2013)	  

-‐	   84%	  
(March	  2015)	  

70%	   77%	  
(March	  2015)	  

√	  

Hospital	  acquired	  blood	  stream	  infection	  
rate	  

Q	   0.8	   0.4	   0	   ≤0.6	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  ICU	  central	  line	  insertions	  fully	  
compliant	  with	  bundle	  

Q4	   100%	  
(Dec	  
2013)	  

-‐	   100%	   90%	   -‐	   √	  

Number	  of	  central	  line	  acquired	  bacteraemia	   Q	   2	   0	   0	   0	   -‐	   √	  
Percentage	  of	  operations	  where	  all	  three	  
parts	  of	  the	  surgical	  safety	  checklist	  were	  
used	  

Q4	   92%	  
(Dec	  
2013)	  

-‐	   96%	  
(March	  2015)	  

90%	   93%	  
(March	  2015)	  

√	  

1.	  Refer	  to	  Health	  Target	  section	  of	  the	  Annual	  Report	  for	  quarterly	  results	  and	  trendline.	  

2.	  Not	  currently	  reported	  nationally.	  	  For	  trend	  value	  only.	  
3.	  This	  Health	  Target	  measure	  was	  introduced	  in	  2014/15.	  	  The	  results	  during	  this	  period	  have	  fluctuated	  and	  are	  susceptible	  to	  the	  small	  numbers	  that	  meet	  
criteria	  for	  acceptance	  in	  reporting.	  
4.	  Baseline	  data	  for	  selected	  Quality	  Safety	  Markers	  were	  completed	  in	  2012/13	  in	  preparation	  for	  the	  introduction	  of	  quarterly	  monitoring	  in	  2014/15.	  
5.	  Performance	  in	  complaint	  management	  continues	  to	  be	  a	  focus	  of	  the	  Hospital	  Advisory	  Committee	  and	  remains	  a	  Key	  Performance	  Indicator	  for	  the	  SCDHB	  
Board.	  
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Elective	  Services	  
These	  are	  services	  for	  people	  
who	  do	  not	  need	  immediate	  
hospital	  treatment	  and	  are	  
‘booked’	  or	  ‘arranged’	  services.	  	  
This	  includes	  surgery	  and	  
specialist	  assessments.	  	  
National	  Elective	  Services	  
Patient	  Flow	  Indicators	  (ESPIs)	  
are	  indicative	  of	  a	  successful	  
and	  responsive	  service,	  
addressing	  population	  need.	   N
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Total	  no.	  of	  elective	  First	  
Specialist	  Assessments	  (FSA)	  

V	   8,558	   9,428	   9,313	   ≥9,165	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  non	  contact	  secondary	  
services	  surgical	  FSAs	  

V,T	   714	   779	   766	   ≥700	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  non	  contact	  secondary	  
services	  medical	  FSAs	  

V,T1	   368	   503	   511	   ≥560	   -‐	   x	  

No.	  of	  Cost	  Weight	  Deliveries	  
CWDs	  

V	   3,690	   3,775	   3,788	   ≥3,595	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  of	  elective	  surgical	  
discharges	  (incl.	  cardiology	  &	  
dental)	  

V	   3,064	   3,001	   3,050	   ≥2,887	   -‐	   √	  

No.	  Health	  Target	  surgical	  
elective	  discharges	  

V	   2,790	   2,740	   2,761	   ≥2,634	   -‐	   √	  

Standardised	  length	  of	  stay	  for	  
elective	  patients.	  	  Refer	  OS8.	  

T	   3.8	   3.4	  
(March	  
2014)	  

3.27	  
(March	  
2015)	  

≤3.40	   3.19	  
(March	  
2015)	  

√	  

Elective	  theatre	  time	  utilisation	   Q2	   83.3%	   81.9%	   80.6%	   ≥85%	   -‐	   x	  
Did	  Not	  Attend	  (DNA)	  rate	  for	  
medical/surgical	  

Q	   3.1%	   2.8%	   2.5%	   ≤3.3%	   -‐	   √	  

1.	  The	  result	  for	  medical	  non-‐contact	  FSAs	  was	  comparable	  to	  the	  previous	  year	  but	  failed	  to	  meet	  the	  projected	  increased	  target	  due	  to	  
use	  of	  physician	  locums.	  

2.	  Elective	  theatre	  utilisation	  remains	  a	  focus	  for	  the	  surgical	  group.	  
	  

	   	  



SCDHB Annual Report 201584

Statement of Service Performance

Maternity	  Services	  
These	  services	  are	  provided	  to	  
women	  and	  their	  families	  
through	  pre-‐conception,	  
pregnancy,	  childbirth	  and	  for	  
the	  first	  months	  of	  a	  baby’s	  
life.	  	  These	  services	  are	  
provided	  in	  home,	  community	  
and	  hospital	  settings	  by	  a	  
range	  of	  health	  professionals,	  
including	  midwives,	  GPs	  and	  
obstetricians	  and	  include:	  
specialist	  obstetric,	  lactation,	  
anaesthetic,	  paediatric	  and	  
radiology	  services.	  	  We	  will	  
monitor	  volumes	  in	  this	  area	  to	  
determine	  access	  and	  
responsiveness	  of	  services.	   N
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No.	  deliveries	  in	  the	  SCDHB	  
Maternity	  Unit	  

V	   621	   635	   582	   Est.	  ≤	  
550	  

-‐	   ∞	  

Percentage	  of	  births	  delivered	  
by	  Caesarean	  Section	  

Q1	   26.5%	   24.4%	   25%	   ≤23%	   -‐	   x	  

Post	  natal	  average	  length	  of	  
stay	  

T2	   2.5	  days	   2.26	  
days	  

2.36	  
days	  

≥2.5	  
days	  

-‐	   x	  

Baby	  Friendly	  Hospital	  
Accreditation	  is	  maintained	  

Q	   Yes	   Yes	   Yes	   Yes	   -‐	   √	  

1.	  Close	  monitoring	  continues	  through	  case	  review	  to	  ensure	  that	  clinical	  indications	  for	  performing	  a	  caesarean	  section	  are	  evident.	  
2.	  The	  result	  for	  2014/15	  reflects	  women’s	  choice	  with	  encouragement	  given	  to	  remain	  in	  the	  unit	  until	  breast	  feeding	  and	  confidence	  in	  
mothercraft	  is	  established.	  
	  

Assessment,	   Treatment	   and	  
Rehabilitation	  Services	  (AT&R)	  
These	  are	  services	  provided	  to	  
restore	  functional	  ability	  and	  
enable	  people	  to	  live	  as	  
independently	  as	  possible.	  	  
Services	  are	  delivered	  from	  a	  
specialist	  inpatient	  unit,	  
outpatient	  clinic	  and	  also	  in	  the	  
home	  environment.	   N
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No.	  of	  ATR	  bed	  days	  utilised	  	  
>	  65years	  

V	   3,528	   3,111	   3,672	   Est.	  ≤	  
4,000	  

-‐	   ∞	  

No.	  of	  ATR	  bed	  days	  utilised	  
<65years	  

V	   457	   383	   252	   Est.289	   -‐	   ∞	  

No.	  of	  ATR	  bed	  days	  utilised	  	  -‐	  
psycho-‐geriatric	  

V	   602	   568	   243	   Est.	  ≤	  
650	  

-‐	   ∞	  

No.	  of	  AT&R	  outpatient	  
attendances	  

V1	   358	   234	   138	   Est.	  ≥	  
450	  

-‐	   ∞	  

No.	  of	  AT&R	  domiciliary	  visits	   V1	   2,288	   2,216	   1,804	   Est.	  ≥	  
2,700	  

-‐	   ∞	  
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Specialist	  Mental	  Health	  
Services	  
These	  are	  services	  for	  the	  most	  
severely	  affected	  by	  mental	  
illness	  or	  addictions.	  	  They	  
include	  assessment,	  diagnosis,	  
treatment,	  rehabilitation	  and	  
crisis	  response	  when	  needed.	  	  
Utilisation	  and	  wait	  times	  are	  
monitored	  to	  ensure	  service	  
levels	  are	  maintained	  and	  to	  
demonstrate	  responsiveness	  to	  
need.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  young	  people	  
(aged	  0	  –	  19)	  who	  have	  
accessed	  specialist	  mental	  
health	  services.	  	  Ref	  PP6.	  

C	   5.29%	  
(March	  
2013)	  

6.4%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

5.9%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

5%	   3.51%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  (aged	  20	  
–	  64)	  who	  have	  accessed	  
specialist	  mental	  health	  
services.	  	  Ref	  PP6.	  

C	   3.58%	  
(March	  
2013)	  

4.37%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

4.19%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

3.6%	   3.8%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  (aged	  
65+)	  who	  have	  accessed	  
specialist	  mental	  health	  
services.	  	  Ref.	  PP6.	  

C	   0.45%	  
(March	  
2013)	  

0.38%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

2.4%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

1%	   2.15%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  0	  –	  19	  
referred	  for	  non-‐urgent	  mental	  
health	  services	  seen	  within	  
three	  weeks.	  	  Refer	  PP8.	  

T	   79.2%	   89.4%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

85.7%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

80%	   69%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  0	  –	  19	  
referred	  for	  non-‐urgent	  mental	  
health	  services	  seen	  within	  
eight	  weeks.	  	  Refer	  PP8.	  

T	   94.5%	   95.5%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

96.4%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

95%	   91%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  0	  –	  19	  
referred	  for	  non-‐urgent	  
addiction	  services	  seen	  within	  
three	  weeks.	  	  Refer	  PP8.	  

T	   100%	   89%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

96.7%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

80%	   84.9%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  people	  0	  –	  19	  
referred	  for	  non-‐urgent	  
addiction	  services	  seen	  within	  
eight	  weeks.	  	  Refer	  PP8.	  

T	   100%	   98.3%	  
(March	  
2014)	  

100%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

95%	   93.9%	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  child	  and	  youth	  
with	  a	  transition	  (discharge)	  
plan.	  	  Ref	  PP7.	  

Q	   New	   New	   94.6%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

95%	   -‐	   √	  
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OUTPUT	  CLASS	  -‐	  REHABILITATION	  AND	  SUPPORT	  SERVICES	  
	  
Rehabilitation	  and	  support	  services	  provide	  people	  with	  the	  support	  and	  assistance	  they	  need	  to	  maintain	  or	  
regain	  maximum	  functional	   independence,	  either	  temporarily	  while	  they	  recover	  from	  illness	  or	  disability,	  or	  
over	   the	   rest	  of	   their	   lives.	   	  These	  services	  are	  delivered	   following	  a	  clinical	   ‘needs	  assessment’	  process	  and	  
include:	  domestic	   support,	  personal	  care,	  community	  nursing,	  community	  services	  provided	   in	  people’s	  own	  
homes	  and	  places	  of	  residence,	  day	  care,	  respite	  and	  residential	  care	  services.	   	  Services	  are	  mostly	  for	  older	  
people,	  mental	  health	  clients	  and	  for	  personal	  health	  clients	  with	  complex	  health	  conditions.	  
	  
Support	  services	  also	  include	  palliative	  care	  services	  for	  people	  who	  have	  end-‐stage	  conditions.	  	  It	  is	  important	  
that	  they	  and	  their	  families	  are	  appropriately	  supported,	  so	  that	  the	  person	  is	  able	  to	   live	  comfortably,	  have	  
their	  needs	  met	  in	  a	  holistic	  and	  respectful	  way	  and	  die	  without	  undue	  pain	  and	  suffering.	  	  	  
	  
Services	  that	  support	  people	  to	  manage	  their	  needs	  and	  live	  well,	  safely	  and	  independently	  in	  their	  own	  homes	  
are	   considered	   to	   provide	   a	  much	   higher	   quality	   of	   life,	   as	   a	   result	   of	   people	   staying	   active	   and	   positively	  
connected	  to	  their	  communities.	  	  This	  is	  evident	  by	  less	  dependence	  on	  hospital	  and	  residential	  services	  and	  a	  
reduction	   in	   acute	   illness,	   crisis	   or	   deterioration	   leading	   to	   acute	   admissions	   or	   readmission	   into	   hospital	  
services.	   	   Even	   when	   returning	   to	   full	   health	   is	   not	   possible,	   timely	   access	   to	   responsive	   support	   services	  
enables	  people	  to	  maximise	  function	  and	  independence.	  
	  

Palliative	  Care	  service	  provision	  in	  the	  home	  is	  driven	  by	  demand.	  	  The	  number	  accessing	  a	  Hospice	  
bed	  was	  comparable	  to	  the	  previous	  year.	  

Timeliness	  in	  the	  completion	  of	  InterRAI	  assessments	  and	  reviews	  has	  been	  maintained.	  

Volumes	  for	  Home	  and	  Community	  Support	  Services	  are	  demand	  driven	  and	  were	  close	  to	  estimated	  
delivery.	  	  The	  unplanned	  readmission	  rate	  for	  those	  patients	  ≥75	  years	  was	  within	  target.	  	  Subsidised	  
residential	  care	  bed	  days	  were	  down	  on	  the	  previous	  years.	  	  Respite	  and	  day	  care	  volumes	  were	  
close	  to	  estimate	  with	  respite	  bed	  utilisation	  targets	  met.	  

Palliative	  Care	  
These	  are	  services	  that	  
improve	  the	  quality	  of	  life	  of	  
patients	  and	  their	  families	  
facing	  life-‐threatening	  illness,	  
through	  the	  prevention	  and	  
relief	  of	  suffering	  by	  means	  of	  
early	  intervention,	  assessment,	  
treatment	  of	  pain	  and	  other	  
supports.	   N
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No.	  of	  clients	  receiving	  
palliative	  care	  in	  the	  home	  

V	   98	   52	   221	   Est.150	   -‐	   ∞	  

No.	  clients	  accessing	  a	  South	  
Canterbury	  Hospice	  bed	  

V	   115	   152	   155	   Est.	  ≥	  
150	  

-‐	   ∞	  
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Statement of Service Performance
	  

Needs	  Assessment	  &	  Support	  
These	  are	  services	  that	  
determine	  a	  person’s	  eligibility	  
and	  need	  for	  publicly	  funded	  
support	  and	  the	  best	  mix	  of	  
supports	  based	  on	  the	  person’s	  
strengths,	  resources	  and	  goals.	  	  
The	  supports	  are	  delivered	  by	  
an	  integrated	  team	  in	  the	  
person’s	  own	  home	  or	  
community.	  	  The	  delivery	  of	  
assessments	  and	  the	  use	  of	  
evidence-‐based	  tools	  indicate	  
quality,	  equity	  of	  access	  and	  
responsiveness.	   N
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Percentage	  of	  InterRAI	  first	  
assessments	  completed	  within	  
target	  timeframe	  

T	   92%	   91%	   90%	   90%	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  InterRAI	  reviews	  
completed	  within	  target	  
timeframe	  

T1	   91.5%	   89%	   Est.	  
85%	  

85%	   -‐	   √	  

1.	  All	  reviews	  are	  completed	  however	  IT	  system	  and	  repeated	  reassessments	  completed	  means	  that	  timeframes	  are	  constantly	  revised.	  

Home	  &	  Community	  Support	  
These	  are	  services	  designed	  to	  
support	  people	  to	  continue	  
living	  in	  their	  own	  homes	  and	  
to	  restore	  functional	  
independence.	  	  They	  may	  be	  
short	  or	  longer-‐term	  in	  
nature.	  	  An	  increase	  in	  the	  
number	  of	  people	  being	  
supported	  is	  indicative	  of	  
increased	  capacity	  in	  the	  
system,	  and	  success	  is	  
measured	  against	  decreased	  
or	  delayed	  entry	  into	  
residential	  or	  hospital	  
services.	   N
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No.	  people	  (total)	  supported	  
by	  Home	  Based	  Support	  
Services	  

V	   965	   971	   1022	   Est.	  1000	   -‐	   ∞	  

No.	  high	  and	  complex	  
dementia	  patients	  supported	  
by	  Home	  Based	  Support	  
Services	  

V	   15	   25	   18	   Est.	  20	   -‐	   ∞	  

No.	  of	  domiciliary	  district	  
nursing	  visits	  delivered	  

V	   33,345	   29,964	   31,785	   Est.32,087	   -‐	   ∞	  

Readmission	  rate	  for	  patients	  
≥	  75	  years	  

Q1	   13.8%	   9.9%	   9.9%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

10.1%	   10.7%	  
(March	  
2015)	  

√	  

1.	  
Not	  currently	  reported	  nationally.	  	  Trend	  value	  only.	  
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Residential	  Care	  Services	  
These	  services	  are	  provided	  to	  
meet	  the	  needs	  of	  a	  person	  
who	  has	  been	  assessed	  as	  
requiring	  long-‐term	  residential	  
care	  in	  a	  hospital	  or	  rest	  home	  
indefinitely.	  	  With	  an	  ageing	  
population,	  a	  decrease	  in	  the	  
number	  of	  subsidised	  bed	  days	  
is	  seen	  as	  indicative	  of	  more	  
people	  being	  successfully	  
supported	  to	  continue	  living	  in	  
their	  own	  homes	  and	  is	  
balanced	  against	  the	  level	  of	  
home-‐based	  support.	   N
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No.	  subsidised	  residential	  care	  
bed	  days	  

V	   173,205	   175,283	   168,572	   Est.	  
184,601	  

-‐	   ∞	  

	  

Respite	  &	  Day	  Care	  
These	  services	  provide	  people	  
with	  a	  break	  from	  a	  routine	  or	  
regimented	  programme	  so	  
that	  crisis	  can	  be	  averted	  or	  so	  
that	  a	  specific	  health	  need	  can	  
be	  addressed.	  	  Services	  are	  
provided	  by	  specialised	  
organisations	  and	  are	  usually	  
short-‐term	  in	  nature.	  	  They	  
may	  also	  include	  support	  and	  
respite	  for	  families,	  caregivers	  
and	  others	  affected.	  	  Services	  
are	  expected	  to	  increase	  over	  
time,	  as	  more	  people	  are	  
supported	  to	  remain	  in	  their	  
own	  homes.	   N
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No.	  people	  accessing	  day	  care	   V	   147	   156	   148	   Est.	  ≥	  
150	  

-‐	   ∞	  

No.	  people	  accessing	  dementia	  
day	  care	  

V	   13	   12	   13	   Est.	  ≥	  14	   -‐	   ∞	  

Percentage	  of	  respite	  bed	  days	  
utilised	  

C	   97%	   99%	   97%	   ≥	  95%	   -‐	   √	  

Percentage	  of	  dementia	  
respite	  bed	  days	  utilised	  

C	   99%	   99%	   91%	   ≥	  90%	   -‐	   √	  

	  

	  

Statement of Service Performance
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Our Values 
Integrity
We will always act with the utmost integrity.

Collaboration
We will actively collaborate with others.

Accountability
We promote accountability.

Respect
We will show respect to all.

Excellence
We strive for excellence in everything we do.
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High Street, Private Bag 911, Timaru, New Zealand

TELEPHONE: 03 687 2100  FACSIMILE: 03 688 0238
EMAIL: ceo@scdhb.health.nz  WEB: www.scdhb.health.nz


